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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHESE (5

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”),
I present to the shareholders the annual report of Dynamic Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 30 June 2022.

RESULTS

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group reported a total revenue
of HK$86,892,000 (2021: HK$86,719,000) and gross profit of
HK$61,927,000 (2021: HK$58,614,000), showing increases of gross
profit about 6% with steady revenue compared with that of last year.
These results were primarily attributable to the improved gross profit
margin at 71% (2021: 68%) for rental income of investment properties
of the Group in mainland China denominated in renminbi yuan
(“RMB”).

During the year under review, the Group accounted for other income
of HK$19,938,000 (2021: HK$32,419,000), which mainly arose from
imputed and bank interest income in the sum of HK$20,034,000 (2021:
HK$19,525,000) with net exchange loss of HK$2,526,000 (2021: net
exchange gain of HK$9,629,000) due to the depreciation of RMB
against Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”). In addition, the Group recognised
a decrease of HK$17,223,000 (2021: HK$22,069,000) in aggregate in
the fair value of the investment properties of the Group under subdued

market sentiment.

Taking into account of the decrease in fair value of the investment
properties together with the related effect of taxation in the year, the
profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company was
HK$31,152,000 (2021: loss of HK$14,065,000), showing a significant
rise of about 321% with basic earnings per share of 13.1 Hong Kong
cents (2021: basic loss per share of 5.9 Hong Kong cents).

In addition, due to exchange difference on currency translation to
presentation currency in HKD from functional currency in RMB,
which devalued against HKD by 2.8% (2021: appreciated by 8.9%) in
the year, the other comprehensive expense was HK$60,881,000 (2021:
other comprehensive income of HK$198,816,000), and the total
comprehensive expense attributable to shareholders of the Company
amounted to HK$28,574,000 (2021: total comprehensive income of
HK$181,050,000) in the year.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022 5




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHES (&)

H& JE\

ok T R R B R WS O oS
il (=& =4 L) PRt —F =
ToAS =R (BMR) Z80AR A R
2 A2 B A7 ISR > ] R AR AR B A 2R 8
TA L AR 2 0 B A i oS il
$$§Z%E%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%mJ%u
HEAHAN —F = F—AUA (B2 —

T AR ﬁﬁﬁ&%f@%ﬁig:
AT ZHAUA (BT BT 2 AR R K
ARG LR

05 o] g

A ) AT A AR 2 R A (U AR
N R &EE) K2 TR A 7 A oK R
MEZHELEEN B AREREYER
BRI RGN E L EERNNIEESE
REMBEMOMENES > AR EFAE
M HE 2202245 2 b A b
BT R B - E AR T P T -

A W EE ST (B LA )
HEYWE TR ESEBRAGHLE AR
71,978,00071: (& = —5 0 AR %73,874,000

Jo) o BEAEM K R R 3% o UL
iWAfﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂzwéEﬁ%%
8689200071:(_2:—$ s #586,719,000

) o A A Y T AR B A A A A IR
ﬁnllﬁt)\

MA A A 2 &Y 2 (R EAL W
-2y g A $u&5$ L) 36 DL K AE 1
W HE AR ) 2 A T{E > 8 BT B RN
ﬁLT>ﬁﬁw§RKE%M%mmEhA
X —4E 0 AR 18,800,000 C) > #5E 5 it
%17 223,0007C ( & = —4F © i #22,069,000

o FEUML > W A B B AL B AR R A
%AE%nnmmm«42:~$vAE%
33,653,000 G ) - 7~ ¥ 144,935,000 G i F
(& = —4F © #¥39,504,00000) > FHA
Tk EMEERRNERBNS LEREY
EZATHETERD - MAFFANFERE
YN TE 2 8 I B BUE 2, LA
A3 BB AR R 2 N R 51,489,000 00 (&
—4E 0 N R 52,453,000 00) > A EE 2 4 [A] A
T 2% °

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 0.5 Hong Kong cents (2021: 1 Hong Kong cent) per share to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 23 December 2022. Together
with the interim dividend of 0.5 Hong Kong cents per share which
were paid to the shareholders of the Company during the year, the
total dividend for the year amounts to a total of 1 Hong Kong cent
per share. Subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 9
December 2022, the warrants for the final dividend are expected to be
despatched to those entitled on or about Monday, 9 January 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year under review, the overall revenue and results of the Group
were principally derived from its operating segment in property rental
in mainland China (the revenue of which was denominated in RMB),
which performance improved as compared with those of the last year as
a result of better infrastructure surrounding its investment properties,
and stable business environment and positive leasing sentiment in the
year before being disrupted by the resurgence of epidemic in major
cities in mainland China in the second quarter of 2022.

The rental income of the Group generated from its investment
properties in two major cities, Shanghai and Beijing, was in the
amount of RMB71,978,000 (2021: RMB73,874,000), denoting a drop
of 3% as compared with that of last year. Such rental income was
presented in the financial statements in the sum of HK$86,892,000
(2021: HK$86,719,000), which represented all of the consolidated
revenue income of the Group for both years.

And the investment properties of the Group which comprised
shopping mall, carparks and other certain properties in Beijing and
office units in Shanghai depreciated in the sum of RMB14,267,000
(2021: RMBI18,800,000) as a whole under subdued market sentiment,
translating into HK$17,223,000 (2021: HK$22,069,000) in the
year. As such, the segment results of property rental reported a
profit of RMB37,222,000 (2021: RMB33,653,000), presenting in a
profit of HK$44,935,000 (2021: HK$39,504,000), which improved
performance was primarily due to the decline in decrease in fair
value of the investment properties as a whole. Disregarding the
changes in fair value of these investment properties and related tax
effect, the underlying segment results would have been a profit of
RMB51,489,000 (2021: RMB52,453,000), showing a drop of 2% as
compared with that of last year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHESE (5

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

In Beijing, the rental income mainly generated from the well-
established community mall of the Group in Chaoyang District
improved with average occupancy rate of about 78% (2021:
80%) throughout the year. And the rental income of this segment
(including car parks and other certain properties) in the year totalled
RMB26,675,000 (2021: RMB24,906,000), which showed a rise
of about 7% as compared with that of last year. It translated into
HK$32,202,000 (2021: HK$29,237,000) that accounted for 37%
(2021: 34%) of the total revenue of the Group. The rise of rental
income is mainly due to increase in consumers’ consumption with less
rental concession in the year as compared with that of previous year.
The fair value of these investment properties comprised shopping
mall, carparks and other certain properties in Beijing decreased in the
sum of RMB46,790,000 (2021: increased by RMB66,200,000) as a
whole. After accounting for the change in fair value of investment
properties of the Group in Beijing, a loss of HK$38,818,000 (2021:
a profit of HK$98,650,000) was recorded in the segment results in
the year. Disregarding the changes in fair value of these investment
properties and related tax effect, the underlying segment results would
have been a profit of HK$17,667,000 (2021: HK$20,940,000).

In Shanghai, office rental and net take-up rate was subdued due to keen
competition of office leasing and relocation of tenants under supply
influx particularly in decentralised areas. It was further intensified
by the sudden outbreak of epidemic resulting in citywide lockdown
in April and May 2022, weighing on leasing rates and rental in the
year. The quality offices of the Group known as “Eton Place” which
is in the prominent financial location of Lujiazui in Pudong recorded
improved average occupancy rate of about 87% (2021: 82%) in the
year, whereas the rental income was in the sum of RMB45,303,000
(2021: RMB48,968,000), showing a fall of 7% as compared with that
of last year. It translated into HK$54,690,000 (2021: HK$57,482,000)
that accounted for 63% (2021: 66%) of the total revenue of the Group
in the year. In the year, with the opening of new metro line and
station and the improved infrastructure nearby, the prime location
of Eton Place has been further enhanced. The fair value of these
investment properties appreciated in the sum of RMB32,523,000
(2021: depreciated in the sum of RMB85,000,000), translating into
HK$39,262,000 (2021: HK$99,779,000). Thereby, the segment results
recorded a profit of HK$83,753,000 (2021: a loss of HK$59,146,000)
in the year. Disregarding the changes in fair value of these investment
properties and related tax effect, the underlying segment results would
have been a profit of HK$44,491,000 (2021: HK$40,633,000).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

During the year under review, Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour
Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”, a joint venture in which the Company
holds 49% of equity interests), which holds interests in a piece of land
located in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan District, Shenzhen (the “Existing
Land”), continued its proceedings of compulsory liquidation (the
“Compulsory Liquidation”) which commenced in July 2016
under supervision of Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court of
Guangdong Province (& & EIITT 5k AR FR) (the “Court”)
and management of a liquidation committee (the “Liquidation
Committee”) as appointed by the Court.

In the year, the Group continued to solidly monitor the Compulsory
Liquidation with the assistance of its legal advisers. Meanwhile, the
Group worked actively with the Liquidation Committee, relevant
official authorities and Chinese joint venture partner regarding the
Compulsory Liquidation, re-zoning, reclamation and outstanding issues
of the Existing Land for swap of the land (the “Land Swap”) by
virtue of the official agreement for the Land Swap (the “Agreement”)
previously entered into between YT HLEIFI B SR & IR )7 1L
HJ5 (Nanshan Administration of Shenzhen Municipal Bureau of
Planning and Natural Resources) (the “Bureau”) and Zhen Wah in
2019 in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

As disclosed in the 2021/22 interim report, Zhen Wah entered into
the supplemental agreement to the Agreement with the Bureau in the
year, to conclude the outstanding issues including but not limited to
reclamation issue and charges for the Land Swap, in return for signing
the land use right transfer agreement for the New Land to Zhen Wah.

Pursuant to the Agreement and its supplemental agreement, Zhen Wah
and the Bureau agreed to the Land Swap such that the Existing Land
was surrendered to the Bureau (the “Surrender Land”) in return
for a new piece of land situated in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen (the “New Land”), to be granted by the Bureau to Zhen
Wabh subject to the terms and conditions as set out therein.

The New Land comprises two adjoining plots of land with total
site area of approximately 109,000 square metres and land usage as
residential, commercial including office and supporting ancillary
facilities, of which the total developable gross floor area is
approximately 395,000 square metres for multi-purpose development.

In the year, the Group kept on working closely with the relevant parties
and authorities for various appropriate applications and approvals as
required for the Land Swap in accordance with the Agreement, and
in alignment with city planning near the New Land including but not
limited to an opera house project and metro lines and station nearby.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHESE (5

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

As previously disclosed, an agreement with the relevant official
authorities was concluded for demolition, relocation and compensation
of those buildings, erections and equipment on the Surrender Land
(the “Relocation Compensation Agreement”) subject to, among
others, settlement of any economic disputes between Zhen Wah with
ex-tenant(s) or any third party(ies) arising therefrom in accordance
with the relevant applicable laws, regulations and rules of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). In May 2021, an ex-tenant lodged
an administrative proceeding with the Court against the relevant
official authorities concerning with the Surrender Land as defendants
and joining Zhen Wah as a third party, opposing the Relocation
Compensation Agreement and claiming for compensation. In the year,
the said administrative proceeding was subsequently subdivided by
several separate new administrative proceedings in accordance with
the relevant administrative procedure law by the ex-tenant as the
plaintiff, each of which Zhen Wah was named as a third party. The
reasons for claiming for compensation remained unchanged.

As advised by the Liquidation Committee and the Group’s PRC legal
adviser, Zhen Wah had defence to the claims under the administrative
proceedings on the basis that the claims were lacking in factual and
legal basis. The Liquidation Committee together with the Group and
the Chinese joint venture partner of Zhen Wah will closely monitor the
development of the administrative proceedings and take appropriate
actions as and when necessary, based on the advice of its PRC legal
adviser.

Recently, there was a change of management of the Chinese joint
venture partner of Zhen Wah. The Group was working with the joint
venture partner collaboratively regarding the Compulsory Liquidation
and the Land Swap and was in the process of negotiating with it about
various viable proposals including but not limited to public auction
of the New Land. As further announced on 8 July 2022, the Court
accepted the application lodged by the Liquidation Committee to
further extend the period of Compulsory Liquidation of Zhen Wah for
six months up to January 2023.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital Structure

The financial position of the Group remains sound and liquid, and
its financing and treasury policies are managed and controlled at
the corporate level and in a prudent manner during the year. The
main objective is to utilise the Group’s funding efficiently and to
manage the financial risks effectively. As at 30 June 2022, the equity
attributable to its owners amounted to RMB1,825,456,000 (30 June
2021: RMBI,802,869,000) with net asset value per share of RMB7.70
(30 June 2021: RMB?7.58), translating to HK$2,134,562,000 (30 June
2021: HK$2,166,702,000) with net asset value per share of HK$8.98
(30 June 2021: HK$9.12). Total bank borrowings of the Group
amounted to about HK$91,833,000 (30 June 2021: HK$95,667,000),
which were secured in Hong Kong dollars and repayable within one
year on floating rate basis. As at 30 June 2022, the gearing ratio of
the Group was 4.3% (30 June 2021: 4.4%) based on the total debt of
the Group to its equity attributable to owners of the Company. The
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations that affected the Group in
the year under review was mainly the depreciation of RMB against
HKD, resulting in the net exchange loss of HK$2,526,000 (2021:
net exchange gain of HK$9,629,000) and exchange difference on
translation functional currency of RMB to presentation currency of
HKD, amounting to other comprehensive expense was HK$60,881,000
(2021: other comprehensive income of HK$198,816,000). No financial
instruments were used for hedging purpose in the year. And the Group
will continue to closely monitor the impact of fluctuation of RMB in
order to minimise its adverse impact.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

In the year under review, there was sufficient cashflow as generated
by rental revenue of investment properties in Shanghai and Beijing.
As at 30 June 2022, the bank balance and deposits and cash of the
Group stood at HK$286,481,000 (30 June 2021: HK$311,172,000),
in aggregate and denominated primarily in RMB. With sufficient
cashflow, the Group maintained unutilised credit facilities of
HKS$11,000,000 (30 June 2021: HK$11,000,000) as working capital at
floating interest rate as at 30 June 2022. The Group’s net current assets
amounted to HK$112,553,000 (30 June 2021: HK$198,291,000)
with current ratio of 1.48 (30 June 2021: 2.28) as at 30 June 2022. No
significant capital expenditure commitments and authorisations was
made in the year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHESE (5

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2022, the Group pledged its properties with a total
carrying value of HK$823,209,000 (30 June 2021: HK$805,211,000),
with an assignment of rental and sale proceeds from such properties
and a charge over shares in respect of a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group to a financial institution as security against general
banking facilities granted to the Group, and also pledged certain
of its bank deposits in the sum of HK$36,624,000 (30 June 2021:
HK$28,362,000) to banks to secure banking facilities and home loans
granted to the home buyers of a property project of the Group. As
at the end of the reporting year, the Group has given guarantees in
respect of settlement of home loans provided by banks to the home
buyers of a property project in Beijing. As at 30 June 2022, the Group
had given guarantees in respect of such home loans amounting to
HK$5,000 (30 June 2021: HK$71,000). The Directors of the Company
consider that the fair values of these financial guarantee contracts
at their initial recognition and at the end of the reporting year are
insignificant on the basis of the low loan ratio.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the economic growth in China will face challenges
and uncertainties related to resurgence of COVID-19 outbreaks in a
number of cities in mainland China along with strict curbs, downturn
of property market and global economic headwinds. Nevertheless,
it is believed that PRC government will adopt imperative policies to
integrate its national coronavirus prevention and control measures
with revamping efforts to accelerate domestic consumption and
urbanisation, propelling households’ confidence for domestic demand,
digital innovation and infrastructural development that will underpin
market sentiment for leasing activities of office and retail sectors.

In Beijing, it is anticipated that the resurgence of the epidemic
will impact the retail market, retracting shopping consumption and
weighing on retailers’ leasing demands and rental concession of the
mall of the Group. Meanwhile, it is believed that the retail market
will resume recovery once the pandemic outbreaks under control. To
leverage the impact of the epidemic and to maintain occupancy rate
and recurring revenue, the Group will endeavor to actively adjust
leasing and marketing strategies including lower rents or providing
subsidies support, to revamp brand’s portfolios and leasing services
alongside with competitive and effective rental strategies to attract
new retailers/tenants and retain existing retailers/tenants.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

In Shanghai, it is expected that the continued uncertainties caused
by the pandemic and lockdown, together with the development of
new business districts and supply influx in decentralised areas, will
continuously suppress leasing market sentiment and the net demand
for office space in core business districts, putting downtrend pressure
on office rental income on core business location such as Lujiazui,
overall occupancy and rental growth. However, it is believed that the
new metro line and station near Eton Place opened in the year will
enhance its prime location for leasing. Meanwhile, the Group will
continue to deploy its competitive and effective rental strategies from
time to time with fitting-out subsidies and more flexible leasing terms,
to attract new tenants and retain existing tenants so as to maintain
occupancy rate and recurring revenues.

The metropolis Shenzhen, being the official Shenzhen Demonstration
Pilot Zone and hightech hub as well as the mainland’s top city for
overall economic competitiveness and premier special economic zone,
is expected to continue its pioneer as a world-class center of cutting
edge innovation, entrepreneurship and advanced technology with high
quality development under official support, and act as the core engine
for the development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area.

Meanwhile, the strict COVID-19 control measures are still being
undertaken to escort the economic development, the outlook
for Shenzhen’s property market is expected to regain economic
growth and remain positive, supported by the strong economic
and demographics fundamentals. This will enhance the sustainable
development value of the New Land in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan
District, Shenzhen.

The Group will continue to act proactively for safeguarding the best
interests of the Company in relation to Zhen Wah and its assets. It
will keep on adopting the best available measures and take expedient
action with a view to protecting the Company’s best interests in
the context of the Compulsory Liquidation. The Group will closely
monitor the development of the Compulsory Liquidation and continue
to seek PRC legal advice and to further strive for the best interest of
the Group in Zhen Wah and its assets. Meanwhile, the Group will
continue to work with the relevant parties to monitor and procure the
progress of Land Swap and to optimise city planning of the New Land
in line with the projects of opera house and infrastructure nearby.
Further announcements and disclosures in relation to Zhen Wah and
its assets will be made by the Company as and when appropriate.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHESE (5

PROSPECTS (Continued)

However, there is no assurance that the Land Swap can be completed
without further significant delay and impediments, or that the
execution of the relevant land contract will not arise. Based on the
PRC legal advice received by the Group, assets of Zhen Wah will
eventually be sold by way of public auction or disposed of by other
applicable means subject to endorsement of the PRC court upon
receipt of proposal of the Liquidation Committee in accordance
with the PRC laws, and any surplus (after settlement of all relevant
liabilities including taxation) will be distributed to the joint venture
partners in accordance with their equity contributions. However,
the issues involved in the Compulsory Liquidation are complex and
sophisticated, involving not only the PRC court but also various
government authorities. There is no assurance that the Compulsory
Liquidation will not be subject to significant delay, oppositions,
obstructions and further dispute or litigation with respect to the matters
of Zhen Wah and/or its assets.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to thank the shareholders, bankers, customers,
suppliers of the Group and other stakeholders who have extended their
continued support to the Group and all staff of the Group for their
contributions to the Group in the year.

Dr. TAN Lucio C.

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2022
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The brief biographical details of each Director (the “Directors”) of the
Board (the “Board”) of Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and updated
information (if any) on Directors pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) and
13.51C of the Listing Rules as at the date of this report are as follows:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. TAN Lucio C., aged 88, is the Chairman of the Board and
Executive Director of the Company as appointed in 2019. He is also
the chairman and Director of a subsidiary of the Company (Beijing
Longfast Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Longfast™)) in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in real estate, banking, airline,
hotel, liquor and tobacco industries. Dr. TAN holds a number of senior
positions in various organisations and holds directorships in various
listed companies. Dr. TAN is and has been the chairman and a Director
of LT Group, Inc. (“LT Group”), PAL Holdings, Inc. (“PAL”) and
MacroAsia Corporation (“MacroAsia”), and a Director of Philippine
National Bank (“PNB”), all securities of which are listed on The
Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (“PSE”). In addition, he has been
recognised for, and awarded as the “Beijing City Overseas Chinese
Special Honorary Award” (Beijing Municipality) and the “Overseas
Chinese Entrepreneur with the Greatest Sense of Social Responsibility
in the Asia-Pacific Region” (Overseas Chinese Affairs Office of the
State Council, China). As for involvement in social organisations,
Dr. TAN is the emeritus chairman of the Federation of Filipino-
Chinese Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Inc. (“FFCCCI”)
in the Philippines. Dr. TAN holds a bachelor of science in chemical
engineering from Far Eastern University in the Philippines, and several
honorary doctorate degrees from various universities. He is related to
other Executive Directors being the spouse of Mrs. TAN Carmen K.;
the father of Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao and Ms. TAN Irene Khao; and
the father-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, aged 64, is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company as re-designated in 2019 and has been appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company since 2007. He is also the
Director of all subsidiaries of the Company (except those subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC) and a Director of a joint venture in the
PRC, Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd., in which the
Company holds 49% of equity interests, under compulsory liquidation
as commenced in July 2016. He has years of senior managerial
experience specialising in the field of real estate, accounting and
finance in Hong Kong and mainland China. Prior to joining the Group
in 1993, he worked at a major accounting firm and held various senior
accounting positions in property companies in Hong Kong. He holds a
master degree in business administration.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Further details of the above-mentioned liquidation are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 8 July 2022; and note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Mrs. TAN Carmen K., aged 81, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 2019. She is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. She has
years of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate,
banking, airline, hotel, liquor and tobacco industries. Mrs. TAN
holds directorships in several listed companies. She is and has been
the vice chairman of LT Group and a Director of PAL, MacroAsia
and PNB, all securities of which are listed on PSE. She is related to
other Executive Directors being the spouse of Dr. TAN Lucio C.; the
mother of Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao and Ms. TAN Irene Khao; and the
mother-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, aged 63, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 2006. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He is also
a Director of Beijing Longfast in the PRC. He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in real estate and manufacturing.
He currently holds a senior executive position in Eton Properties
(Holdings) Limited, and serves as Directors in several companies
engaging businesses of real estate, manufacturing and logistics in
mainland China, Hong Kong and the Philippines. He holds a bachelor
degree in economics. He is related to other Executive Directors being
the son-in-law of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen K.; and the
brother-in-law of Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao and Ms. TAN Irene Khao.

Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, aged 54, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 2019. She is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. She has years
of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate, banking,
airline and education. Ms. TAN is and has been a Director of LT
Group, PAL, MacroAsia and PNB, all securities of which are listed
on PSE. She is the Director of Eton Properties Philippines, Inc. She
sits on the Board of the University of the East and the University of
the East Ramon Magsaysay Memorial Medical Center. She has been
awarded the “Ten Outstanding Young Men Award” for education/
business entrepreneurship in the Philippines. Ms. TAN graduated from
the University of San Francisco with a double degree in mathematics
and computer science. She is related to other Executive Directors
being the daughter of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN Carmen
K.; the sister of Ms. TAN Irene Khao; and the sister-in-law of Mr.
PASCUAL Ramon Sy.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. TAN Irene Khao, aged 57, is an Executive Director of the
Company as appointed with effect from 14 September 2021. She is in
charge of business development, investment and management of the
Group. She has years of senior managerial experience specialising in
banking, hotel, securities and insurance industries. She is the Director
of Alliedbankers Insurance Corporation as well as the Director and
president of Pan Asia Securities Corporation. Ms. TAN graduated
from the University of San Francisco with a degree in Science in
Business Information Systems. She is related to other Executive
Directors being the daughter of Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs. TAN
Carmen K_; the sister of Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao; and the sister-in-
law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth, aged 71, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company as appointed in 1994. He is also
the chairman of both audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Board, as well as a member of nomination committee of the Board.
He is a veteran in the jewellery business in which he has years of
senior managerial experience. He is managing a number of companies
engaged in diamond trading, jewellery manufacturing, wholesaling
and exports activities in Hong Kong and South East Asian countries.
Currently, he also serves as an Independent Non-executive Director of
Allied Banking Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited (“Allied”).

Mr. GO Patrick Lim, aged 64, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company as appointed in 2013. He is also a member
of audit committee of the Board, the chairman and member of
nomination committee of the Board, and has been appointed as a
member of remuneration committee of the Board in 2021. He is
the chief executive officer of Paramount Life & General Insurance
Corporation and also serves as an Independent Non-executive Director
of Allied. He has years of senior managerial experience specialising in
corporate finance and private/public equity having worked for Credit
Suisse First Boston, Bank of America Asia Limited and Bankers Trust
Company. He is also a member of Singapore Institute of Directors. He
holds a bachelor degree in economics and a master degree in business
administration. He was formerly a Director of Del Monte Pacific
Limited, which is listed on Singapore Exchange Limited. Currently, he
also serves as an Independent Non-executive Director of Allied.
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PROFILE OF MANAGEMENT (Continued)
EBAERSN (m)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. NGU Angel, aged 74, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company as appointed in 2019. He has years of senior
managerial experience specialising in the business of aluminum
products. Mr. NGU holds directorships in various companies and
holds a number of senior positions in various organisations. He is
the chairman and president of Angus Aluminum, Inc. and Roosevelt
Aluminum Products Co. Inc.. He also acts as honorary president
of FFCCCI in the Philippines and Filipino-Chinese Quezon City
Chamber of Commerce. In addition, he has been awarded as 2016
Outstanding Manilan for Community Service, City of Manila. He
holds a bachelor degree in commerce from University of the East in
the Philippines.

Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony, aged 67, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company as appointed in 2019. He is also
a member of remuneration committee of the Board, and has been
appointed as members of audit committee and nomination committee
of the Board in 2021. He has years of senior managerial experience
specialising in the business of banking. Mr. MA has held senior
position in treasury and global markets in Bank of Shanghai (Hong
Kong) Limited and Bank of America, N.A. Hong Kong Branch.
He has been a member of the Treasury Markets Association and
an alternate chief executive of Bank of America, N.A. Hong Kong
Branch. He holds a Bachelor of Arts from York University in Canada.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) and
management of Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) strive
to establish and uphold good practices and procedures on corporate
governance. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasis an effective Board, prudent risk management and internal
control systems, transparency and accountability to its stakeholders
including shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees, the public
and regulatory bodies.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, being the financial year under
review, the Board and the management of the Company have been
continually reviewing and enhancing the corporate governance
practices of the Company with reference to local and international
best practices from time to time. The Board believes that its continued
efforts in enhancing the Company’s corporate governance practices
have contributed to sustain the business growth of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) in the past years.

With an aim to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders for the year ended 30 June 2022, the Company has
applied the principles and adhered to the code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) as amended from time to time, save for deviation
of certain code provisions of the CG Code as disclosed below. Also,
the Company has met some of the recommended best practices, where
appropriate, in the CG Code. The CG Code has been amended with
effect from 1 January 2022 and is applicable to the Group in the
financial year commencing on or after 1 January 2022, all corporate
governance principles and code provisions as stipulated in this
“Corporate Governance Report” refer to those in the CG Code before
the amendments, not the revised CG Code.

The Company has also established an internal corporate governance
code (compliance guide) (the “Internal CG Code”), the contents
of which are in line with the CG Code as revised from time to time
according to the relevant amendments to the Listing Rules. The
Internal CG Code aims to facilitate compliance with the CG Code
and to give guidance to Directors and the senior management of the
Company in this respect. The Board will continue to monitor and
review the corporate governance practices and procedures of the
Company to ensure compliance with the CG Code and to enhance its
practices and procedures.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EXREBREE )

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors on the same terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as amended from time to time (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has confirmed to
the Company that he/she has complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises six Executive Directors (the “Executive
Directors”) and four Independent Non-executive Directors (the
“Independent Non-executive Directors”). The members of the Board
during the year ended 30 June 2022 and up to 30 September 2022 are as
follows:

Current Directors:
Dr. TAN Lucio C.
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan

(Chairman and Executive Director)
(Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director)

Mrs. TAN Carmen K. (Executive Director)

Bk .
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TAN Carmen K. & + (B ATEFH)

HOE R e A (#1735 F)
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TAN Irene Khao & + (HATHEHF)
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GO Patrick Lim /&4 (H5r FEHATESF)

NGU AngelJ& £ (#gr FFEHTH )
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Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao
Ms. TAN Irene Khao
(appointed on 14 September 2021)
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
Mr. NGU Angel
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony

Ex-Director:
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan

(Executive Director)
(Executive Director)
(Executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Executive Director)
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(resigned on 17 December 2021)

Currently, the Company has four Independent Non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board and more than one of
them have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

Responsibilities and Accountabilities

The Board is responsible for establishing the corporate objective,
value and strategy with overall strategic development and direction,
setting business objectives and development plans, monitoring the
performance of the business and senior management, and ensuring
sound corporate governance of the Group. It also monitors the
financial performance, the internal controls and risk management of
the Group’s business operations. Executive Directors are responsible
for running and managing the operations of the Group and executing
the strategies adopted by the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Responsibilities and Accountabilities (Continued)

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management with departmental heads responsible for different
aspects of the business and functions of the Group. The Independent
Non-executive Directors serve the function of bringing independent
judgment on the business development and performance, internal
controls, corporate governance and risk management of the Group
through their contributions in the meetings of the Board and
committees of the Board.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or via other
communications equipment in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board meets regularly with meeting
dates scheduled in advance. Between scheduled meetings, senior
management of the Group provides to Directors on demand or on
a regular basis monthly updates and other information with respect
to the performance, and business activities and development of the
Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Company held a total of four
Board meetings, three meetings of committees of the Board, and an
annual general meeting. Details of Directors’ attendance record of
such Board meetings, committee meetings and general meeting during
the year are as follows:

Number of Meetings Attended / Eligible to Attend

Annual

Audit  Remuneration General

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
Dr. TAN Lucio C. 4/4 N/A N/A 0/1
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 4/4 N/A N/A 1
Mrs. TAN Carmen K. 44 N/A N/A 0/1
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 44 N/A N/A 171
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao 4/4 N/A N/A 0/1
Ms. TAN Irene Khao 4/4 N/A N/A 0/1

(appointed on 14 September 2021)

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 4/4 212 11 111
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 4/4 22 11 01
Mr. NGU Angel 4/4 N/A N/A 0/1
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony 4/4 22 171 171
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan 012 N/A N/A 071

(resigned on 17 December 2021)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EXREBREE )

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Training and Development

For training and continuing professional development of Directors,
the Company provides relevant information and publications to all of
the above-mentioned Directors on a regular basis to keep them abreast
of the latest changes and development in the industry, legal, statutory
and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its business,
and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and
duties of a Director of a listed company to ensure that the Directors’
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Directors
have also from time to time been provided by the Company of in-
house and on-line training and updates in the areas of regulatory,
corporate governance, risk management, internal control practices and

policy and sound industry practices.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to attend external forums,
training courses or webinars during COVID-19 pandemic on relevant
topics for their continuous professional development. There are
arrangements in place for Directors to obtain continuing professional

development at the Company’s expense whenever necessary.

The newly appointed Director, Ms. TAN Irene Khao, received
induction on the first occasion of her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

In accordance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’
training and continuous professional development, all current and
ex-Directors as stated above participated in the training activities
described above during the year ended 30 June 2022. Each current
Director has provided a record of training they received during the
year to the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of the chairman (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer (the “CEQ”) of the Company are
segregated and separately undertaken by different officers to ensure
a balance of power and authority. The Chairman, Dr. TAN Lucio C.,
provides leadership and is responsible for driving effective functioning
of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice,
and overseeing the Group’s overall direction and strategic planning.
The CEO, Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, is mainly responsible for
implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved by the
Board and managing the business and affairs of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
(the Company has currently no other non-executive Directors) are
appointed for a term of two years subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Bye-laws. The Bye-laws stipulate that every
Director will be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at annual general meeting of the Company, and being
eligible for re-election.

Meanwhile, all Independent Non-executive Directors have to confirm
their respective independence annually pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules for their continuous appointment after reviewed and
assessed by Nomination Committee. And those serving for more
than 9 years, their further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolutions to be approved by the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”). The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation
of his independence and the Board considers that each Independent
Non-executive Director meets the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is independent.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee for overseeing specific aspects of the affairs of the Group.
Each committee is established with defined terms of reference, which
are posted on the website of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) since 2005 with terms of reference,
which meet the requirements set out in paragraph B.1.2 of the CG
Code. The members and change in composition of the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 30 June 2022 and up to 30
September 2022 are as follows:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing,
evaluating and/or recommending to the Board the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors, senior management and
employees of the Group; the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing the policy of such remuneration; and the
specific remuneration packages (if any) of individual Executive
Directors and senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2022 and up to 30 September 2022,
a meeting was held and resolution in writing was passed by the
Remuneration Committee for, amongst others, the following in
accordance with its terms of reference:

1. reviewed the emolument policy of the Directors of the Company
and remuneration policy of the employees of the Group and the
retirement benefit schemes of the Group;

2. make recommendation of emolument policies of the Directors
of the Company and employees of the Group;

3. reviewed the adoption of share option scheme of the Company as
incentive to Directors and eligible employees; and

4. recommended to the Board the emolument of a newly appointed
Executive Director, Ms. TAN Irene Khao.

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee of the Board
(the “Nomination Committee”) since 2012 with terms of reference,
which meet the requirements as set out in paragraph A.5.2 of the CG
Code. The members and change in composition of the Nomination
Committee during the year ended 30 June 2022 and up to 30
September 2022 are as follows:

Mr. GO Patrick Lim*
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the composition, structure, size, gender and diversity of the Board;
formulating and monitoring the policy for nomination of Directors;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors and assessing the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors. Criteria adopted by the
Nomination Committee in considering whether the relevant personnel
are suitable as Directors include their qualifications, experience,
expertise, skills and knowledge, ethnical, age, gender, cultural
background and so on in view of the provisions of the Listing Rules
and the policy of diversity of the Board (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) as adopted by the Board, which summary is set forth below.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity

The purpose of the Board Diversity Policy is to increase diversity at
the level of the Board; to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and
quality of its performance; and to support the attainment of strategic
objectives/plan and sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to regional, industry
and professional experience, skills and knowledge, relevant length
of services, gender, age, race, ethnicity, cultural and educational
background and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate(s) will
bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the Board
Diversity Policy and recommend any revisions thereof (if appropriate)
to the Board.

For diversity of the members of the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills and knowledge, age, ethnicity, relevant years of experience and
expertise and relationships (including business, financial and family, if
any) among them and between the Chairman and CEO (if any), please
refer to the “Profile of Management” and the section on “Directors
interests in competing business” in the “Directors’ Report” on pages
14 to 17 and pages 32 to 45 respectively of this annual report.

During the year ended 30 June 2022 and up to 30 September 2022,
the members of the Nomination Committee performed the following
works pursuant to resolutions in writing signed by all members in
accordance with its terms of reference:

1. assessed and recommended to the Board the appointment of Ms.
TAN Irene Khao as Executive Director of the Company;

2. reviewed the size, composition and structure and diversity of the
Board, and assessed the balance of skills and experience of the
Board as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Group;

3. reviewed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors;
4. reviewed the retirement and re-election of Directors for the year

ended 30 June 2022; and

5. recommended to the Board the revision of its terms of reference
in compliance with the amendments to the Listing Rules.

SRR R TREER | ENEEARA A




HEREERAT (@)
RETHS (H)

Bl BE_F__HFAHA=THILFE
W PR B e B ek

HEBEZEOA

EEGH - NANMNFRILEEGHRSLER
(I RBEERG ) » HBRMESEMFSER
?%%CBEﬁ%ﬂH&E RN EHE
1 4 S VA ik AE S 8 i A VA <1 RIS D3
BBk e TR RS o B
EOF D FEAA=ZTHIEFEARER
TECCHERA=ZTH FREZAEGNE
LAz BT

HE R e+ (H5r FEHATEF)
GO Patrick Lim /& 4E (#57 FFHATHEH)
F e (Fg s AT HH)

* OERERGIRN

FHE B G T EA T TR

L2 00 b

Lo b A A R ) 2= AT~ R B AT KRk
o 1) 2 2 P L A K

2. T A 0 AT E A B R B % AN A B A
B 28 ST VE B B BLYE o LA R A SRR
AR

WY B REH - IR~ R PR
ERFEHEZHEN

3. MR BH B BB A m BB R JH I o8 B
B A RAR BEHRE R AR B IR

TH > 3lf 7 B b Rl R S iR TE P AT B
S s EE i F) B R K B

4. BIEAS SR 0GB TE RO
B B R oA B B 4 AR

A JE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EXREBREE )

BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

As such, no meetings were held by the Nomination Committee during
the year ended 30 June 2022.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) since 1999 with terms of reference, which meet the
requirements as set out in paragraph C.3.3 of the CG Code. During the
year, the Board has delegated the functions of corporate governance
to the Audit Committee with additional terms of reference as set out
in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code. The members and change in
composition of the audit committee during the year ended 30 June
2022 and as at 30 September 2022 are as follows:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Mr. GO Patrick Lim
Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:

Relationship with the auditors

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards;

Review of the financial information, financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems

3. to review and monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the annual report, half-year report and accounts
of the Company and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

4. to oversee the financial reporting system and review the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group;
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)
Relationship with employees

5. to review arrangement for employees of the Group to raise
concerns about possible improprieties of financial reporting,

internal control or other matters; and
Corporate governance function

6.  toreview and monitor corporate governance functions delegated
by the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2022 and up to 30 September 2022,
two meetings were held and resolutions in writing were passed by the
Audit Committee for, amongst others, the following in accordance
with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee:

1. recommended the re-appointment of the external auditor; and
reviewed the financial reporting system and procedures of risks
management and internal control systems of the Group; and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2022;

2. approved the engagement of the external auditor for reviewing
interim results; and reviewed the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 31 December 2021;

3. reviewed and monitored the policies and practices on corporate
governance under D.3.1 of the CG Code, and compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements as stated in corporate
governance report of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021
and as disclosed in the interim report for the six months ended
31 December 2021; and

4. recommended to the Board the revision of its terms of reference

in compliance with the amendments to the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EXREBREE )

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 30 June 2022, audit and non-audit services
were provided to the Group by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the auditor
of the Company (the “Auditor”). The total remuneration in respect
of services provided by the Auditor amounted to approximately
HK$1,809,000, of which approximately HK$1,500,000 was incurred
for statutory audit and approximately HK$309,000 was incurred for
non-audit services.

The Audit Committee is of the view that the Auditor’s independence
and objectivity will not be affected by the provision of the
abovementioned limited scope of the non-audit services to the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, re-appointment, resignation or dismissal

of its external auditor during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The Auditor’s statement of reporting responsibilities and report
on material uncertainty (if any) of the Group are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 46 to 50 to this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

Risk is inherent in the Group’s business and the markets in which it
operates. To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the
Company may be exposed, the Board is responsible for establishing
and overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
has been properly conducted. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee has included its responsibility for an effective system of
risk management and internal control. The main features of these
systems, which continue to operate, were described in this “Corporate

Governance Report”.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the Board and the Audit Committee
have delegated the management to conduct and complete a review in
respect of the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of business and operations of the Group. Such
review conducts annually and covers all material controls including
strategic and planning, financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management functions.

The Group has also engaged internal audit function and no material
control failure or significant areas of concern or fraud which might
affect the interests of the Shareholders were identified during the
reviews.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure in the process of attaining business objectives. The review of
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year has been concluded and based on the results of the
annual review, the Board considers them effective and adequate. The
“Principal Risk and Uncertainties” of the Group in the year is stated in
the “Directors’ Report” on page 32 to 45 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
is responsible for facilitating that Board’s policy and procedures
being followed with good information flow. In addition, the Company
Secretary advises the Directors on governance matters and facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject
to Board’s approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. All members
of the Board have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary, Ms. WONG Oi Yee, Polly is an
employee of the Group and has complied with rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 30 June 2022.

SRR R TREER | ENEEARA A




JBe SRR A Be £t ¥t B 4R

FRERR R BB E 2 M > ARFRS
B R e $5 THI 2 T R A
B2 W BE o R A e AR RS R A R [ R
W BRAE By L > AR FIE M 2 (A& 1 ]
IR R FF I AR AN AR AR R g
JBe SRR R~ AR~ RO g~ BUR
SO LR~ 2~ R R B A R AR 2w A o
EUECAIDEE IR

MoF_—F+ A+t H BT RRHE
EREG (TR KRE)) > EF e L d R
Y56 R 0 7 52 T 9 Jife A BR ) oK B R B HE
K o B[R F > A8 28 6 2 g I A0 Bl A%
ML E R R AN TR LS > B
RS B R R g o DA ) B RO K & R
Mo THEER - i E R N H
ST HIEZEE S RATRMR R T
ZHIJUH BT RREE R G > > AN T
WEPERG R A ERGTEE TN (W
B ) R DA R TE] R BRSO b Y R R

JECSR ~ BB B R 2 RO A DT Bk A%
AR F AR A

Eah (852) 2881 5221
HE - (852) 2881 5224
A i

0] 4 ¥

A HH 8 5%

5P oD

174
4k www.dynamic.hk
EE info@dynamic-hk.com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EXREBREE )

SHAREHOLDERS > RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company regards communication with its Shareholders and
investors as an important means to enhance the transparency of
the Group and regularly collects views and feedback from them,
to safeguard the interests of its Shareholders and investors. To this
end, the Company communicates with its Shareholders through
various channels, including annual general meetings, special general
meetings, annual reports, notices of general meetings, circulars sent
to Shareholders, announcements, press releases and other corporate
communications available on the website of the Company.

At the annual general meeting on 17 December 2021 (the “AGM”),
the chairman of the Board was unable to attend the AGM due to travel
restriction under COVID-19 pandemic. Meanwhile, management
and external auditor of the Company together with the chairmen
and/or members of the Board’s committees attended the AGM to
answer relevant questions raised by and understand the views of the
Shareholders thereat. In respect of the year ended 30 June 2022, an
annual general meeting of the Company will be held on 9 December
2022, at which the Company will arrange for the Chairmen of the
Board and committees of the Board (as appropriate) to attend and
answer questions and proposals raised by the Shareholders thereat.

Shareholders, investors and the media can make enquiries or proposals
to Board of the Company through the following means:

Telephone:  (852) 2881 5221
Fax: (852) 2881 5224
Post: 17th Floor
Eton Tower
8 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
Website: www.dynamic.hk
Email: info@dynamic-hk.com
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SHAREHOLDERS >’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS (Continued)

By virtue of section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 (Bermuda) (as
amended), the procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting and to put forward proposals at general meetings are:

1. The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Bye-laws shall,
on the requisition of member(s) of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
forthwith proceed duly to convene a special general meeting of
the Company.

2. The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th Floor,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

3. If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which is the policy of the Board for recommending and declaring
dividends to allow the Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits, and to maintain adequate cash reserves for business operations,
development and growth of the Group. The Dividend Policy is subject
to review from time to time.

According to the Bye-laws, the Company in general meeting may
declare dividend(s) but no dividend(s) shall exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. And the Board may from time to time
declare such interim dividends to the Shareholders as the Board
thinks appropriate. In proposing any dividend payout, the Board
shall take into account, inter alia, the actual and expected financial
performance of the Group; retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group; the level of
the debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial
covenants of the Group; any restrictions on payment of dividends that
may be imposed by the lenders of the Group; the expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans of the Group; general
economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and any other factors
that the Board deem appropriate.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 30 June 2022, there were significant changes
in the Company’s constitutional document, namely, the Company
has amended the Bye-laws to provide flexibility to the Company
in relation to the conduct of general meetings and reflect certain
amendments to the Listing Rules, and made other consequential
and housekeeping amendments. The amendment was approved by
Shareholders in the AGM. Details of the amendment are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 27 October 2021. An up-to-date version
of the Bye-laws is available on both the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are property investment. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year, the Group’s revenue was derived primarily from rental
business activities conducted in mainland China. An analysis of the
Group’s performance for the year by operating segment is set out in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

A review of the Group’s business, including an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators, the important
events (if any) affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year and the likely future developments, is set out in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report. Details of capital risk management and financial
risk management are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated

financial statements respectively.
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to supporting environmental sustainability
and strives to comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations
regarding environmental protection and to adopt measures to achieve
efficient use of resources, energy conservation and waste reduction.
Further details will be disclosed in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2021-2022” of the Company which should be
published on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company at the same time
upon the publication of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the risk of non-compliance with such
requirements. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2022 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. Further discussions on
the Group’s compliance with laws and regulations are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2021-2022” and
“Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship
in a sustainable manner with its stakeholders including its shareholders
and investors, employees, customers, suppliers, regulatory bodies
and community as well as enhancing collaboration with our business
partners. Details are set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2021-2022” and “Corporate Governance Report”
in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

In respect of the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group reviewed and
conducted the process of risk identification and assessment and had
identified certain corporate level and business divisional risks. There
are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of
the Group. A non-exhaustive list of principal risks and uncertainties of
the Group and control measures for the year is set out below:

Financial Risk

There is a significant financial risk arisen from the fluctuation of
fair value of investment properties, which accounted for the highest
proportion of the Group’s total assets. The slow economic recovery
arising from the on-going threat of COVID-19 and the resulting
downward trend of rental performance may trigger market uncertainty
and instability, resulting in a significant change in fair value of
investment properties. The Group may also be exposed to financial
risk by the further extension of the period of liquidation of Shenzhen
Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”), which may
delay repayment of the significant amount due from Zhen Wah and
distribution of its net assets to the Company as one of the joint venture
partners after completion of liquidation, with additional amount of
legal fee or other associated expenses to be recognised in the future
financial period of the Group.

Market Risk

The Group’s investment properties are located in Beijing and
Shanghai, from which a substantial amount of the Group’s revenue
is derived. The challenging and highly competitive market condition
and unstable growth of the property rental segment in Beijing
and Shanghai significantly affected the Group’s property rental
performance and financial condition in the year. The default risk of
tenants and the risk of tenants’ relocation were also inevitably higher
under unstable economic outlook and also had an adverse impact on

the revenue and results of the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Market Risk (Continued)

However, the Group had proactively reviewed and taken mitigation
action to reduce the impact on its property leasing business arising
from the risks mentioned above, by maintaining a good quality
of tenant mix, offering a competitive rental package for tenants’
retention, renovating or refurnishing its properties regularly, improved
property management services and refining its business strategies.
These proactive and responsive measures enable our Group to benefit
from mitigating the impact resulting from the risks mentioned above.

Social and Economic Risk

Uncertain economic environment in China arising from serious
coronavirus outbreak in 2022 and uncertainties over economic
recovery resulting from the outright lockdown, frequent nucleic-
acid testing and tough restrictions in China may weaken customers’
spending power or confidence and adversely affect the property
leasing market in China. This macroeconomic factor, together with the
fluctuation of interest rate and Renminbi, may have various levels of

negative impact on the results of the Group’s operations.

Facing the resurgence of coronavirus pandemic, the Group must be
able to adapt promptly and make appropriate contingency plans to
respond to new measures implemented by government, while at the
same time maintaining the services to its customers and productivity
of its workforce, both in Hong Kong and mainland China.

Compliance Risk

The Group has material interests in residential and commercial
property investment in mainland China and is therefore subject to
the increasing regulatory requirements associated with the mainland
property market. In additional, the Group’s operations require
compliance with local and overseas laws and regulations (including
those of mainland China, Bermuda and Hong Kong). The Group has
constantly monitored and identified all applicable laws, regulations,
and standards that affect its business, and also kept up with updates

and changes to the related laws and regulation.
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 147 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 51.

DIVIDENDS

On 12 January 2022, a final dividend of 1 Hong Kong cent per share
was paid to the Company’s shareholders as a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

An interim dividend of 0.5 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to
HK$1,189,000 was paid to the shareholders of the Company during the
year. On 30 September 2022, the Directors recommended the payment
of a final dividend of 0.5 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to
HK$1,189,000 payable to the sharcholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 23
December 2022 which, in aggregate, will give a total of dividends for
the year ended 30 June 2022 of 1 Hong Kong cent per share.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The increase in the fair value of the investment properties which has
been recognised in profit or loss amounted to HK$1,006,000.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of the Group are set out in notes
13 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director of the Company should
be entitled to be indemnified by the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and liabilities incurred by him or her
in the course of his or her duties or in relation thereto pursuant to its
bye-laws (the “Bye-Law(s)”) of the Company. Such provisions were
in force during the year and remained in force as at the date of this
report. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal action against
Directors and senior management of the Company arising out of

corporate activities.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
were the retained earnings of HK$146,385,000 as at 30 June 2022.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. TAN Lucio C., Chairman
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, Chief Executive Officer
Mrs. TAN Carmen K.
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao
Ms. TAN Irene Khao
(appointed on 14 September 2021)
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan
(resigned on 17 December 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Mr. GO Patrick Lim

Mr. NGU Angel

Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Dr.
TAN Lucio C., Mrs. TAN Carmen K., Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan and
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth will retire by rotation and all being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed,
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Law 99, for a term of two years and they have confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2022, the interests and short positions held by the
Directors or the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”), shares of any
of its associated corporations and underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules were as follows:

HH OB
WERBYA (FH)
Number of issued ordinary Shares held

(long position)
e
CEfRA
BABES  KBER CRES BaRY RAAkAY
Total interests
as approximate
Personal Family Other Aggregate percentage of
interests interests interests interests issued share capital
(H#=) (H#0m)
(note iii) (note iv)
2,190,000 2,190,000 89,321,279 93,701,279 39.42%
1,000,000 = = 1,000,000 0.42%
2,190,000 2,190,000 89,321,279 93,701,279 39.42%
1,582,000 = = 1,582,000 0.67%
1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.42%
300,000 - - 300,000 0.13%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

i. Dr. TAN Lucio C. was deemed to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares as founder
of a private discretionary trust. Dr. TAN was deemed to be interested in 2,190,000
Shares held by his spouse, Mrs. TAN Carmen K., as family interests under Part
XV of the SFO.

ii. Mrs. TAN Carmen K. was deemed to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares which her
spouse, Dr. TAN Lucio C., was interested in as founder of a private discretionary
trust, and 2,190,000 Shares held by Dr. TAN Lucio C. as family interests under
Part XV of the SFO.

iii. The references to the 89,321,279 Shares in which Dr. TAN Lucio C. and Mrs.
TAN Carmen K. were interested in or taken to be interested in relate to the same
block of Shares.

iv. The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 237,703,681 Shares) as at 30 June
2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, none of the Directors,
the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the chief executive(s)
of the Company or any of their associates had been granted or
exercised any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt securities of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) during the year ended 30 June 2022.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme on 17 December
2021. Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company are set
out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 30 June 2022, no share option was granted,
outstanding, exercised or lapsed under the share option schemes of the

Company
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as described in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements and under sections of “Directors’ interests and short
positions in Shares”, at no time during the year and as at 30 June
2022 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, at no time during the year,
subsisted such arrangement(s) as aforesaid and none of the Directors
of the Company, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors of the Company are considered to have interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

Dr. TAN Lucio C., Mrs. TAN Carmen K., Mr. PASCUAL Ramon
Sy, Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao, Ms. TAN Irene Khao and Mr. CHUA
Joseph Tan (resigned on 17 December 2021) held interests and/
or directorship in companies engaged in the businesses of property

investment in Hong Kong and/or mainland China in the year.

As the Board of Directors is independent from the boards of the
said companies, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such

companies.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. These
transactions were sharing of administrative services on cost basis and/
or de minimis transactions as conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business upon normal commercial terms. They constituted
connected and/or continuing connected transactions that were fully
exempted from requirements of disclosure, independent shareholders’
approval and annual review under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
material interests, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group to be
undertaken by a person was entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2022, so far as is known to any Director or chief
executive(s) of the Company, persons (other than the Directors or
the chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

HHCHE
WHRHUH
(§4)

Number of

LT
CHATRAR
TR RA%

Total interests

Ay
(k)

issued ordinary
Shares held
(long position)

as approximate
Total interests percentage of

Capacity (long position) issued share capital
(Wit=)

(note ii)

89,321,279

89,321,279 37.58%

discretionary trust (note i)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

i. Zedra Asia Limited was taken to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares held by
Dynamic Development Corporation, the entire issued share capital of which was
held by Zedra Asia Limited as trustee for a private discretionary trust.

ii. The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 237,703,681 Shares) as at 30 June
2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, no other person (other
than the Directors and the chief executive(s) of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is recommended
by the remuneration committee of the Company on the basis of
the respective merits, responsibilities and duties, performance,
qualifications and competence taking into account of comparable
market level, operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives of the Board of Directors and relevant legal requirements,
provisions, guidelines and recommendations of regularly bodies. At 30
June 2022, the Group had about 50 employees (including Directors)
in Hong Kong and mainland China at prevailing market remuneration
with employee benefits such as medical insurance, provident fund
schemes, share option schemes and training.

The emoluments of the respective Directors of the Company are
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company, having
regard to the operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives, individual performance and responsibility and comparable
market statistics. The Directors are entitled to receive a Director’s
fee or emolument on the basis of attendance of meeting of the Board,
meeting of the committee of the Board or general meeting of the
Company.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive to

Directors and eligible employees. Details of the share option schemes
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for 5% of the Group’s revenue and
the percentage of revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were less than 15% of the total revenue of the Group. The
Group’s largest supplier accounted for 27% of the Group’s purchases
and the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers in aggregate was 59% of the total direct costs of the Group.

Save as those related party transactions are disclosed in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year did
a Director, a close associate of a Director or a shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest

in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30 June 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EEHREE m

MR b B ) 58 13.22 0 i 3% B DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

WZEZZAEANAZTH > AAFS% T —  Details of advances given to an affiliated company as at 30 June 2022,

Mg EAFBEEEELR(EE R EHRAI which exceeded 8% under the assets ratio as defined under rule 13.16

H13.161%) T 52 8% M B F E BN T - of the Listing Rules are as follows:

RN_F
ASE A AH=1TH
L E-yepid:a ok a8

Percentage of Amount of

equity held advances at

Affiliated company by the Group 30 June 2022
W 5 T

HKS$°000

(REHE)

(Unaudited)

TR 2 o6 8 > 3G FR A 7 Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd.
(TN ) (fat) (“Zhen Wah”) (Note) 49% 235,768

Mz - YIERKS AN —F—W4aE—H+AHEW . 2 Note: The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Thereafter, Zhen

%o YIFEL I H A B IE AT - A4 Wah ceased its operation and is now in the process of liquidation. The advances
T YR T HKIECO A SECERLR > 15 to Zhen Wah by the Group have been accounted for as amount due from a joint
T fH B 4 4 P50 TE IR 51 45 16 38 TR B 52 o oK venture, details of which are disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
SR R E E RO RS T+ WA statements. The amount of advances are unsecured and to be repayable after the
HEm o next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

WP FHEASEBR2ENEERZEHRE Pursuant to the continuing disclosure requirements under rule 13.22
W EHENHZTH EuliBE /A w of the Listing Rules, the statement of financial position of the above

HI HE [y B B R I 32 M A 4E [ AE 31 #E p e fL affiliated company, Zhen Wah, and the attributable interests of the
REZS P BT - Group in Zhen Wah as at 30 June 2022 are disclosed as follows:

AL

RV AV HE 2

Statement of Group’s

financial attributable

position interests

HWET T WHEWET T

HKS$°000 HKS$°000

(REHER) (R HH)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

I E) Non-current assets 266,706 130,686

g E Current assets 62,598 30,673
T AR Current liabilities (111,031) (54,405)
JE B B 1A Non-current liabilities (235,768) (115,526)
A E Net liabilities (17,495) (8,572)
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (Continued)
EEREFT w)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 June 2022
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules save for the derivation of certain
code provisions as disclosed in the “Corporate Governance Report”.
Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 18 to
31

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

Further details of environmental, social and governance reporting
under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will be disclosed in the
“Environment, Social and Governance Report 2021-2022” of the
Company which should be published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively at the same time as the
publication of this annual report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to seek shareholders’ approval to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
Director and Chief Executive Olfficer

Hong Kong, 30 September 2022
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TO THE MEMBERS OF DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 146, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

B o it B 0 )

Key audit matter
B St it

Valuation of investment properties

8- ¢/E LI

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with significant
judgments associated with determining the fair value.

BB LEEYRMEMRRFELER > hREEY
KEBMBESMBIRER G BER > N EEEA
R 9 B T R F By

The investment properties of the Group represented residential,
commercial and carparks portion and office units located in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). As at 30 June 2022, the
Group’s investment properties amounted to HK$2,005,063,000,
representing approximately 75% of the Group’s total assets.
During the year, a decrease in fair value of investment properties
of HK$17,223,000 was recognised in profit or loss.
BEMBBEEYET AR P EARIEME (TP E ) K E
T WERAFEILG A DR AME o R R TAEAN
= H o ARG BCE Y A S 1 2,005,063,000 7T 0 A
AEEEEREATY% o REBER > Y 3N F
i 517,223,000 78 £ 1A 4R 4 4 R o

The Group’s investment properties were carried at fair value
based on the valuations performed by the independent qualified
professional valuers. Details of the valuation methodology and
key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, which involve the independent
qualified professional valuer’s judgments.
BEMBEWEN L FET R BA B LA EREEME
W AEEAT 2 AN (B o A (B 7 Tk B A (B R0 1 B E b A T R
A I S B R TEL B R B 1S TR B 5 o Horh i OB L
B B BE AN (AR A0 ) B o

The valuations of residential portions and carparks under direct
comparison approach, amounting HK$316,304,000, were
dependent on key inputs including estimated market unit sales
rate. The valuations of commercial portions and office units under
income capitalisation approach, amounting HK$1,688,759,000,
were dependent on key inputs including capitalisation rates and
estimated market unit rents.
B8 B8 70 B 45 0 0 72 B R PRk R AN (5
316,304,000 7C > UL T3 HR BRI B A TR o L A R
S BT B B R o T R A0 A M B TR I B AL
TR AR 1 J o 15 1,688,759,000 7C - B T MR A T E A T
R BREEAC RS EoT S
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B2 v ¢ il Jun 4 o B B S 9 i 296 O

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BEECEW SEA (> FATPAT BT P 45

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent qualified professional valuers;

o RPANE LB AR BOEAN (AT A B RERE L - BE DAY
ZB

. Understanding the independent qualified professional
valuers’ valuation methodology, the performance of the
property markets and key inputs used in the valuations;

o TR LG R BOE AN (6 T I (B IS B (A
(B 77 35 ~ W 3E T 3 1 R BT R 8 L2 A T
E

. Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs applied in
direct comparison approach by comparing to relevant
market information on market sale rate/sq.m. or unit rate;
and

o AT AT O R B A RO 0N B I 0 £ B
P > BEAY E Bk R R A TR
URESE R

. Engaging our internal valuation specialist, to assist us
in assessing the reasonableness of key inputs including
capitalisation rates and estimated market unit rents applied
in income capitalisation approach.

o BAERMOABGEERELR  HEEMFERAE
AfLEP AN EERA TR SHEN GFE
AL AL 5 U R 4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT (continued)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BYIBRBEKES o)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wu Ka Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 September 2022

SRR R AR | ENEEAERA A




AN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GERmkEttEzRRER

HEZZ-__FXA=FTHILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

it 2t e Jastant
NOTES 2022
BT
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
A Revenue 5 86,892 86,719
B A Direct costs (24,965) (28,105)
TAH Gross profit 61,927 58,614
AU A~ i g B 48 Other income, gains or losses 6 19,938 32,419
BEWENTEZ KD Decrease in fair value of investment 15
properties (17,223) (22,069)
THCE A Administrative expenses (43,299) (42,290)
P 2 Selling expenses (592) (575)
Bl R A Finance costs 7 (1,857) (1,947)
GEAAEZ EE Share of loss of a joint venture (11,661) (9,011)
5 B4 AT 6 Al Profit before taxation 8 7,233 15,141
PR BLTEA (d0BR) Income tax credit (charge) 10 23,451 (26,929)
AR i R (s 4R) Profit (loss) for the year 30,684 (11,788)

AAE A AT (52 ) Other comprehensive (expense)

e A income for the year
BE A A G AT Item that will not be reclassified
Ha ZHH - to profit or loss:
KABHEZIN G Exchange differences arising
T 58, 72 %8 on translation of presentation
currency (60,881) 198,816

ARAEBE A (S A Total comprehensive (expense) income
A for the year (30,197) 187,028

ARAEPE RS A (F518) FEAL @ Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:

EN/NEIE =N Owners of the Company 31,152 (14,065)
I 72 I HE A Non-controlling interests (468) 2,277
30,684 (11,788)
2 (S H) d A B Total comprehensive (expense) income
JEAL - attributable to:
FNV/NISIE ZBN Owners of the Company (28,574) 181,050
IE 7 B HE £ Non-controlling interests (1,623) 5,978
(30,197) 187,028
R (1) Earnings (loss) per share 12
(V1 i) (Hong Kong cents)
HAR Basic 13.1 (5.9)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

S B AR R

R=ZZ=ZZF/,A=1+HA At30June 2022

R
2022
BT
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
E ST UR: ¢ Non-current Assets
LE B TS & ] Property, plant and equipment 13 1,818 2,402
i A HE Right-of-use asset 14 3,317 5,651
HEY = Investment properties 15 2,005,063 2,074,921
GRS Interest in a joint venture 16 91,163 91,831
G ERR Amount due from a joint venture 16 235,768 242,129
HoAh & A Other asset 1,403 1,441
2,338,532 2,418,375
it W) ¥ Current Assets
B Gy S A R A R R % Trade and other receivables and 17(i)
A AT K prepayments 22,926 12,302
FE HE I B R R 3k Amount due from a non-controlling  17(ii)
shareholder 894 919
SRAT HEATAE 2K Pledged bank deposits 28 36,624 28,362
SRAT 2 WA K Fixed bank deposits 17(iii) 98,374 101,558
SRAT &5 0 M Bl & Bank balances and cash 17(iv) 188,107 209,614
346,925 352,755
b RER Current Liabilities
&y B HoAth JE A I 3k Trade and other payables 18 46,344 51,641
HEaE Lease liabilities 19 2,372 2,283
JE AF 56 TE Tax payable 93,823 96,706
AT — Bank loan — 20
JEN — R E R due within one year 91,833 3,834
234,372 154,464
U A Net Current Assets 112,553 198,291
B 800 DR B a4 Total Assets less Current Liabilities 2,451,085 2,616,666

52 SRS BB CEEER | ENEEARAA




AN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
GZEMBIRRE =)

RZZF=Z=FA=1+H At30June 2022

- S
2022
BT
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
¥ A B fift Capital and Reserves
H A Share capital 21 237,704 237,704
f¢t Reserves 1,896,858 1,928,998
A2 A BEA A HE A Equity attributable to owners of the
HE 2% Company 2,134,562 2,166,702
I e B 2 Non-controlling interests 41,642 43,265
BB 2% Total Equity 2,176,204 2,209,967
FE W B £ % Non-current Liabilities
RATHE K — Bank loan — 20
JH— F ARG due after one year = 91,833
R ST B TE B A Deferred tax liabilities 22 262,633 299,809
CR R e Long-term rental deposits received 11,114 11,551
HEAE Lease liabilities 19 1,134 3,506
274,881 406,699
2,451,085 2,616,666

W ESIF M6 E 2 4 5 MEIEIED % =%  The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 146 were
TOFENA S THBES S LR approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30

Ep > Sl R A AR E September 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:
#=H #=H Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
e SHE A S 4 DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERZEEXR

For the year ended 30 June 2022

BHE-_Z-_—FA=1HLFE

AR A AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
i 1] AR Fok
Bk RORER ARG fifi AR Rl SRR delt  BREN ik 14
Capital Share Non-
Share Share Special  redemption  Translation option Other  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests
ER T Vil e BETT B ERFT Fi  #FFT T
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HK$000
i (
(Note a)
R-Z-FELA—H At 1 July 2020 237,704 438475 S5018 1,644 94471 - 92451 9878 1,038 388 1,988,029 187 2025316
() A (Loss) profit for the year - - - - - - - - (14,065) (14,065) 21 (11,788)
EREEZ AT Exchange differences arising
£ ontranslation - - - 115 - - - - 1ss 300 198816
FERTRA L) Total comprehensive income
4% (expense) for the year - - - 19515 - - - (14065) 181,030 5978 187,008
RAEE RiHE Transfer from statutory reserve - - - - - - @) I - - _
B RMRARE Dividends recognised as
(Wit#11E) distribution (note 11) - - - - - - - 231 37 - 2377)
REZEZ-ERAZ4HH At30 June 2021 237,704 438475 55018 1,644 289,586 - 92451 983 1041990 2,166,702 43265 2,209,967
R (BR) Profit(oss) for the year - - - - - - - 31,152 3115 (468) 30,684
EABEZMAESE  Exchange differences arising on
translation - - - (59,726) - - - - (59,126) (1,155) (60,881)
FERE (L) Total comprehensive (expense)
fA%E income frthe year . B, I ) : f SR I ey g
UREETRE Transfer o statutory reserve - - - - - - 560 (560) - - -
A RMRARE Dividends recognised as
(WEEIT) isrbution e 11 . . : : : - S s )

BREZZZENAZFH At30 June 2022 237,704 438475 55018 1,644 229,860 - 92451 10394 1,069,016 2,134,562 41,642 2,176,204

Mt - Notes:

(FR) A S ) 2 5 ot 5 7 A TR 4 s 2 (o i 400 P i i 2 (a) The special reserve of the Group arose from the difference between the aggregate
B a5 2 ) R 2 BREAS RO U R - — A A AR amount of the share capital, share premium, general reserve and retained profits of
¥ ik R 2 A B AR 2 ) Sl g g T T B AT 2 R0 the subsidiaries acquired, and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued
THI (B M) 2 22 R AE A o for the acquisition in relation to a previous group reorganisation.

() AEEZH AL TIBAEAR B AL w B4 7l (b) The other reserve of the Group represents deemed contributions from equity
N2 I E BT RNENH =T HIEE holders of the Company which arose from the difference between the fair value
> E A B A AR 2 SR (L 3 A0 i i of consideration paid and payable and the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
Ji N\ T B 2 R R B R AR liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired through acquisition of the subsidiaries
ZFAEE N 2 AT EAE - during the year ended 30 June 2006

() 8 B da R A% 4 0 7 (o A 2 40 O AR A ALY (o) The statutory reserve transferred from retained profits are required by relevant

54

e R R BT op ) B B 4 W) 2 R A
0 A TR R T R o Bk T AR O S T AR 1
50% > e Bk Ik E B S R TE Y 4 R R A5 D R BLAR
T A1 10% ©

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws and regulations applicable to the
Company’s PRC subsidiary. The amount should not be less than 10% of the profit
after tax as recorded in the statutory financial statements unless the aggregate
amount exceeds 50% of the registered capital.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

nv'K e IE ﬁ L E %

HEZZ-__FXA=FTHILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
BT o W T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
BREXE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
% it T v A1) Profit before taxation 7,233 15,141
A Adjustments for:
FIE M A Interest income (20,034) (19,525)
&Y ST WD Decrease in fair value of investment
properties 17,223 22,069
Y~ BRI 2 PT#  Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 604 565
5 A RE & e 2 YT Depreciation of right-of-use asset 2,264 2,342
B - B R Loss on disposals of property, plant and
&5 18 equipment 5 -
Pl i AR Finance costs 1,857 1,947
HGEMEZERS B Share of loss of a joint venture 11,661 9,011
5 B 2 T 50 e 4H i A Unrealised exchange loss, net 2,518 -

REU R 5y BERAETE M5 & Impairment loss recognised on trade
Jh A R 2 5 1R receivables under expected credit

VRN loss model 949 1,896
RS EH 2 Operating cash flows before movements in
é%%ﬁ%oﬁ% working capital 24,280 33,446
B Gy R HAth B i I 3K K (Increase) decrease in trade and other
FAAT B (g n) w8 > receivables and prepayments (12,324) 12,626
& 5 B FHoA EAT R EK (3 )  (Decrease) increase in trade and other payables
4 hm (4,167) 2,156
o H &S24 Cash generated from operations 7,789 48,228
EL AT v B T 15 B 3 PRC Income Tax paid (7,023) (5,307)

KARBEH 2B 4H%H  NET CASH FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES 766 42,921

BV B INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2 i AR Interest received 6,318 5,069
] $R AT E WA A7 K Withdrawal of fixed bank deposits 18,251 57,989
FENSRAT 2 AR R Placement of fixed bank deposits 17,797) (1,635)
WEYE - B R Purchase of property, plant and equipment (72) (819)
WY - B Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and

ST A5 B equipment 1 _
P B ) 2 Addition of investment properties (2,990)
TSE A SRAT HEHRAE 3K Placement of pledged bank deposits (288,146) (181,307)

4B (5] $R AT HE HH A7 2K Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 278,933 158,111
() RABEGHZ NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING

B4 W H ACTIVITIES (5,502) 37,408
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
ZAERERER m)

HE-_T-_—_F,A=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

TRTUE

2022

BT I
HKS$’000 HKS$°000

Tk 2 5% ) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

8 25 SR AT BRI A Repayment of bank loan (3,973) (4,000)
2T A Dividends paid (3,566) (2,377)
EEME AR Repayment of lease liabilities (2,283) (2,118)
2o FLE Interest paid 1,675) (1,704)
M ERE B4 CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (11,497) (10,199)

B RB %M (WA) NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN

34 Jm B B CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (16,233) 70,130
AERIZ2 B4 BB A %A CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 209,614 134,292
A WE 56 3 3 5 h 2 5 EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGE (5,274) 5,192

ERZBIE RIS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR,
DLSRAT &5 i S B 4 £ R represented by bank balances and cash 188,107 209,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n'l'.R

HEZZZ

1.
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ENEEMARS R (TARAF ) TI1EH 5
R RO 2 Z AR A R > H B
TE A7 W Wt 5 28 5 BT AT BR2x =) ([ W88 28 B 1)
TR BT o ALY Gk M A R T
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EHER ]
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ZBINEW > ARG MBS IRE LGS 2
3 o

HEE I 7 8 A 5 3 o B ) ([ 7 8 S
BB v L) BT AR

A A BE ) 2 0 2 A e o
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AAEFEN - ARG O EH KN T h
TG E A g (1% &t i A6 ) i
flasdf it —F = —FE A~ HRZEMR
A I Y 9 ) A 2 A S A
HI ZABRTA » DU ARG MBS HRIA

FEMBHREEAS 65 AR S
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BB HREENF - AR -5

i Gt 53048 - 35
T i I W e S 7 4

T 1 T T S ) S 4

i BB RS 1658
(7T%)

ZHFRNA=THIEFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dynamic Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate and Investor
Information” in the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
33.

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKS$”) as the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
consider that Hong Kong dollar is the most appropriate presentation
currency in view of the Company’s place of listing.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2021
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June

2021
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
& B85 BR H B RE o)

HE-_T-_—_F,A=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022
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R 1 7 0 08 5 S o B ([ 7 98
B ) BT AR

A A B o 2 B 2 A o R R e
A ()

B R SCHT A 5 Ab o TR A AF IR T A i B
B 4 HE QA T A - A 4R R 4R T
Jo i 15 4F B H) o 5 IR DL B R B B R
S K5 W MR JEL B SRR BB - MR EOK
BLAL .

e

MEJH 7 38 S 5 7 R S 95 - 7 At
HWELYSFIOE - 77 7 B e A RSB 7 -
T 78 Y 5 T 5 I S5 4 S 7 v I A
HEQY 16 9E (B RTA) [ F 58 o o —
BB IZHE

ARG AR AR B K S B ET o
ST W I TR E T A i B O E T 5B
TR T R HEREHEH] ((HFEME
A o J) ST HR 1) PR T AR 09 A RO
R~ R E R S R B R B
o BB EE  MBEAMRLHEAR
2 A A B AL Y R S R R

o R H s AT
5 B T (B /5 #E 1595,667,000 7T > H: ] S, B
A RE A7 | 2R B HE Bl B B () W SAT R
EWRE (THEHRL]) HE -

T SR AT B R A A A O U A R
B AR WA B 1B AT B AR S B R A
A e 5 B o A AR W R TR R AT AT 1 5
7 T PR ) 25 R v N i A 0 S
ARG 2 AT AR & A BN A
B o 7k S R E R SR 7 SR R E — 4
2 5 W B RE S 3 1(b) HH -

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments relate to changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, specific hedge accounting requirements and the related
disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures (“HKFRS 77).

As at 1 July 2021, the Group has bank loan with carrying amount
of HK$95,667,000, the interest of which is indexed to HKD Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) that may be subject to
interest rate benchmark reform.

The amendments have had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements as the bank loan has not been transitioned to the relevant
replacement rate during the year. The Group will apply the practical
expedient in relation to the changes in contractual cash flows
resulting from the interest rate benchmark reform for bank loan
measured at amortised cost. Additional disclosure as required by
HKFRS 7 are set out in note 31(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A RIBEMKE (@)

HE-_T-__FA=THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

R 1 7 0 08 5 S o B ([ 7 98
B ) BT AR

O AL AR 2 38 2 i 7 B 3 i
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BB S5 175

BT R 358
(fB314)

B HTT H H 1098
RAEEGHEN 85
(fB377)

BT
(fB317%)

B HES 5
(B4 ) B i b5

Bk AR E AR5
B THEH R
(BT %)

FHGTHENE 123
(BT %)
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments

to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned

below, the Directors anticipate that the application of all new

and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

59




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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HE-_T-_—_F,A=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material. If an entity
chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting policy

information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements” (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity
applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance and examples
are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies.
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3.

AR B 3% AR T BY RE (a)

HE-_T-__FA=THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods or services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Levels 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the

financial statements of the Company and entities controlled

by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved

where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements
of joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture. Changes in
net assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held
by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interest in that joint venture, the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that
the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or
when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as
held for sale.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the
Group, profits or losses resulting from the transactions with
the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
building, that are held for administrative purposes, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
(Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual value using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use asset

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use asset to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use asset are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are also
allocated to relevant cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and
is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use asset (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of carparks portion that have a lease term
of twelve months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-

term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in

dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment property are
presented within “investment properties”.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered
as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use asset.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
when the lease term has changed in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount

commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments
to be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income, gains or losses”.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from the profit before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

SR BEDRCFEEER | ZBOEEARAS A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BAMBRESREE R LG
w8 (4

FER A BOR (A7)
BH ()

AR A SR T e R T M A AR
I AL 1 {9 AL 552 90 A B T T
H oo AL E SR E B 2T
S o % 8 O R BB B R o

0t DR L i A L e A
BTSN > A G W 5y T R
HEMHEAEENEE g EL
SBI2RHLE o BN T 040 e R
F O > TE ) A0 e RO T M O A A
B £ fRUIRR AR B BY R 2 S A R
oo FEMFEAEAHAHEE
H T FG A% 8 R R A
F1 SR TH B0 2 A7 168 T T A ) I A
22 B (A 5290 b e W8 8 S R RR) R
EEie AT T

B AT S AT HE R RO B
JEUE A SRR ST B R B R > i b
93 5 BiL (7] — 0 75 1% A i 1 i A B
AT - 0 S I A B AR S B IH B
AL H

T 39 T 0 S 5l JELTE 4R i 1 D M
B At 4x T A B % A ORE 4R
il 58 < S H AT B A R AL > R RZ 1R DL
T o BRIV R A S T AR a0 A
At 22 T T A B P R A P AR o

3.

AN EREMGE (a2

HE-_T-__FA=THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in Renminbi to the Group’s presentation
currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in translation
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
translation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits plans
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are charged as expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers, which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.

SR BEDRCFEEER | ZBOEEARAS A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
& B 35 AR TE B 5E o)
HE-_T-__FA=THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

3. HAWMBREGWUEERTEG 3
w8 (4

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32 BEGFHEOR () 3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

EH TR ()
=& E ()
S il E (L

A G5 AR A o BB A E R 59
R 2E T WAE RT A 0 S (LA
AEMSEI  BRERRR - ®
Ty B F At BE SRR IH ~ JF #58 J J R X
A AT HRAT AT K - BRAT RE WIAE K
FeSRAT 45 B ) B B0 A 5 A9 DL
W5 B R (0 OB £k 41 ) Bt
AOEAT BUE R A - FUE Sl H 1
GRS B ER - DA
) 56 it 8 LA B9 £ 0 Ja i 4 o

o URCRUEEN g TR Sk D ARIi] SN
T R AF 0 A B A 89 BT A AT RE A A
FAF TR B FUNAE Sk A
Moo 124 A TE I B 1R 4 TR
it HIWAZ 128 H 7 A] RE 3 AR B0
#) BT A SR B 40 A2 0 U A AT
Wi 1R o F A AR R A 42 A 1 A5
RECEELT > AR R B A FEE R
R BRSO
"B AR L B o AR L T B 64 5T A T

AR B — B R I SR e R
WS kR

WU A Hofl TR - A M AR
4 I 45 95 8 2 S 12 A FE IS B ks
8> BRIk A b e R A% 15 4 E B B
R > A 4 [ R A I TN A5
Bl 18 o T M AR R A I TE S &
e 48 B AL % FE 1 B ) B R LA SR
BRI A AT R M R R A B
B e

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including
amount due from a joint venture, loan receivables, trade
and other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits
and bank balances) and financial guarantee contracts which
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

®

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

®
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Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition of a loan
commitment, the Group considers changes in the risk
of a default occurring on the loan to which a loan
commitment relates; for financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group have
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

a. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

b. a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
c. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

d. it is becoming probable that the borrower

will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

)

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights. The Group uses
a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
ECL is the present value of the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows but only if,
and to the extent that, the risks are taken into account
by adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the
cash shortfalls being discounted.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes past-
due status into consideration when formulating the

grouping.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables and
financial guarantee contracts where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when the Group transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continue to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts
it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bank
loan and long-term rental deposits received) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

. the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash

flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of a financial liability to which the amortised cost
measurement applies as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group applies the practical expedient to account
for these changes by updating the effective interest rate, such
change in effective interest rate normally has no significant
effect on the carrying amount of the relevant financial
liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and
only if, both these conditions are met:

. the change is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the contractual cash

flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
(i.e. the basis immediately preceding the change).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements

Share options granted to employees and consultants

providing similar services

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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4.

HEAMBREMNE 4
HE-_T-__FA=THILFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties located in the PRC are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised the
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties
as the Group is subject to Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) and
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) on disposal of its investment
properties.
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LW FE L T

R AREEBREYE (BT
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment properties
(including residential, commercial and carparks portion and
office units) are carried at a total fair value of HK$2,005,063,000
(2021: HK$2,074,921,000) based on the valuations performed
by independent qualified professional valuers. The valuations
of investment properties were arrived at by reference to market
evidence of recent transaction prices for similar properties and/or on
the basis of discounted cash flow projections based on estimates of
future rental income from properties using capitalisation rates and
estimated market unit rents of individual units as inputs. In relying
on the valuation, management has exercised its judgment and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties and corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
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5. WA Ko BER

By T BRI REEAG R B R B
TFTAARAEHG ([HFEG) (MEELK
BPREE) WERS > CEPRYEMRE
1 49y 3 BT 7 3t

E SN ORI RIE/E iR
o AEEMNYEBEA G EEQREN
T F B Rl R A
EH TR ATEY o

BWE X _HFANA=ZTHILEE Y
S A e B AG AS TP 4R O A
AT A FH B AT 3O #52,475,000 00 (& T —
A 3,718,000 0T ) o HiBR & B B B E
AT -

7 B2 [ i 1 A o T R o R T SR R R A
B B B DLW A b B
BT S ] 2 S BUE KL -

(V) 2 BUBCA B2k it

B E R SN P AE FE i
AT B AT E

Beijing Shanghai

45 B R 1E B 5 ()

BE-_T-_—F,A=1HILFE Fortheyear ended 30 June 2022

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of performance focused on
the location of the properties for property rental.

The property rental segment includes property leasing operation
in the PRC. The Group’s investment properties portfolio, which
mainly consists of offices, residential and commercial units and
carparks, are located in Shanghai and Beijing, the PRC.

The revenue from property rental for the year ended 30 June 2022
includes variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate of HK$2,475,000 (2021: HK$3,718,000), the remaining
amounts are lease payments that are fixed.

Property rental analysed based on distinct geographical locations,
are the basis on which the Group reports its segment information
under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

(a) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment for the year:

LZE 3 15
Property rental
Je % L e
Consolidated
Y St S

SET M DR
2021 2022 2 2022
BT BWH T # T T #W T

HK$'000 HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HEKS$’000 HKS$000

AR SEGMENT REVENUE
(LN REVENUE
HHM External sales 29,237 54,690 57,482 86,892 86,719
Vg B3 SEGMENT RESULT (38,818) 98,650 83,753 (59,146) 44,935 39,504
KA EEAM YA - Unallocated other income,

i 4% 55 48 gains or losses 18,073 27,444
E i WAIE Unallocated corporate expenses (42,257) (40,849)
il A Finance costs (1,857) (1,947)
AELEZER Share of loss of a joint venture (11,661) (9,011)
B B i s A Profit before taxation 7,233 15,141
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GAEMBEIREME (@)

HE-_T-_—_F,A=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

5. WARMBER ) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
() 3N RES (47) (a) Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Ky B2 & wh BUR B B RE 553
TR e A 4 T 1) S BORAR [E] » 2y
BUEESR A B ZE A (R) - M
A7 88 53 B AT BUSAS ~ 25 T H A
WA~ s KR (EHEESE
1 36 R 2 R FLE A - 8147 A
BUCA -~ S O ) W48 1 88
Hof) ~ mbERA K AE MK
58 o ek o) Bl K IR KT £l R
BHmEsg 2l st e -

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment result represents the profit (loss) from each segment
without the allocation of central administration costs, certain
other income, gains and losses (mainly including imputed
interest income on amount due from a joint venture, bank
interest income, exchange (loss) gain, net and others),
finance costs and share of loss of a joint venture. This is the
measure reported to the Board of Directors for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.

(CAN 2 399 3K (b)

Segment assets and liabilities

L/E 315
Property rental
Je L e
Beijing Shanghai Consolidated
RN SECE RO SO RO DT
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
BN FI BRI BW T BT #WF BWT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
{4 ASSETS

NEEE Segment assets 774,400 852,743 1,250,423 1,231,714 2,024,823 2,084,457
HEbERER Interest in a joint venture 91,163 91,831
HESERK Amount due from a joint venture 235,768 242,129
KoL ERE Unallocated corporate assets 333,703 352,713
GAUEMAA Consolidated total assets 2,685,457 2,771,130

i LIABILITIES
A E Segment liabilities 15,577 16,930 28,368 44.424 43,945 61,354
FNHEAEEE Unallocated corporate liabilities 465,308 499,809
EeN e i Consolidated total liabilities 509,253 561,163

By B2 PO [R) I 43 R 26 B %O R )
fic
- KAEBLEHR AELE
Ko~ BRATIE M Ko A
o MATR R KB &L KK
fib 4 2 E AL REE E TS
Oy BB T R

WO A B - SRAT B K IR
Il AR R H At A 36 AR
S - A ER AR TG O3 B 2 KR
Vi

94

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than interest in a joint venture, amount due from a
joint venture, pledged and fixed bank deposits, bank
balances and cash and other corporate assets; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than tax payable, bank loan, deferred tax liabilities and
other corporate liabilities.
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AN BRENE @

BE-_T-_—F,A=1HILFE Fortheyear ended 30 June 2022

5. WARMBER ) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(W) Jefb 2y BUEOR (¢)  Other segment information

ET N
Property rental

73 L EE T AR 5

Beijing Shanghai Segment Total Unallocated Consolidated

SROCE ZFCF ZR0CE ~H ZRCTE CECF CRCTE DT DROCRE S0k
022 2022 201 2022 201 2022 201 2022 201
#UTLE  ENTE BT ENTE #FTX EFTT O #MTL EETT ERTL ENTI
HES'000 ! HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSU00

BREHEAE Amounts included in the
ES BV g1 measure of segment result or

AR segment assets
WEME B Purchase of property, plant and
i equipment 4 - - - 4 - k) 819 n 819
W¥ - BEREM  Depreciation of property, plant
2hE and equipment 178 174 - - 178 174 426 391 604 565
REMAELE Addition to right-of-use assets - - - - - - - 6,792 - 6,792
WMEEEZTE  Depreciation of right-of-use
assets - - - - - - 2,264 234 2,264 2342
g E Additions to investment
properties - - 2,990 - 2,990 - - - 2,990 -
FEMEATMEZ  Decrease (increase) in fair value
B (B of investment properties 56,485 70 (39,260 99,779 1723 22,069 - - 17,223 22,069

HEMCE SIRA TN Impairment losses recognised
REERELT on trade receivables under

A7 RN E expected credit loss model M2 1,896 37 - 949 1,896 = - 949 1,896
(7)) s n%HE (d) Geographical information
AAEEAR B HINEF AT AT All of the Group’s revenue from external customers are
AR B (RN - located in the PRC (other than Hong Kong).
¢ B AV IR 2 ML IO A il B The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
MR F current assets analysed by the geographical area in which the

assets are located:

Ik at 1 ¢ A DR i
Carrying amount of
non-current assets
—E2
2022
BT T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
g (U R S) PRC (other than Hong Kong) 2,097,347 2,168,189
s Hong Kong 5,417 8,057
2,102,764 2,176,246
A A ) bk I I ) A R AL 4 Al The Group’s non-current assets above exclude financial
TH- instruments.
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GAEMBEIREME (@)

HE-_T-_—_F,A=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

5. WARMBER ) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
() FHREEEFR2ZER (¢)  Information about major customers

AR R AR B AL A 42 [0k A10% L |
ZRFWREWT

Revenue from customers of the corresponding year
contributing over 10% of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

TR T4E
2022

W T
HKS$°000

FFH Customer A N/A

BE-F - HEANA=ZTHIEEE
N R A AR — R P A
7 AR ] AR 10% /9 Wi A I A T2
EEF o

6. JCABMCA ~ W2k skl 1 6.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group does not have
major customers as no single customer contributes more than
10% of the Group’s revenue.

OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES

FoAB WA ~ Wi BT 1R AL

B R BE R A

Included in other income, gains or losses
are:

Imputed interest income on amount due

R4
2022

W T
HK$°000

HK$°000

from a joint venture 13,780 14,167

SRAT AL WA Bank interest income 6,254 5,358
Satl s (s 1H) AR Exchange (loss) gain, net (2,526) 9,629
B Hi B Government grants 107 510
TE W B B 3 A TE 15 Impairment losses recognised on trade

i AR AR receivables under expected credit loss

Y 15 B8 (6 model (949) (1,896)

7. BRI 7.  FINANCE COSTS

R 4R
2022

BT
HK$°000

SRAT A B S Interest on bank loan 1,509 1,645
EAaKZ A Interest on lease liabilities 182 141
oAl 5 £ A Other borrowing costs 166 161
1,857 1,947
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A RIBEMKE (@)

BE-_T-_—F,A=1HILFE Fortheyear ended 30 June 2022

8. BRABL kA 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
2022
BT o
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
5 6 i d6s R 2 41 BR Profit before taxation has been arrived at
(FFA) THIKIHE - after charging (crediting):
A% ST T <6 Auditor’s remuneration 1,861 1,695
L/ERR £V & L P Depreciation of property, plant and
Pres equipment 604 565
i HE & i 2 I8 Depreciation of right-of-use asset 2,264 2,342
2 R SR Loss on disposals of property, plant and
i 8 equipment 5 _
i N H 2 A Ok Legal and professional expenses and
consultancy fee 14,559 17,117
WERHM (WA () ) Directors’ emolument (note 9(a)) 2,882 2,734
HoAth B T A Other staff costs
ASELAE IR ARAR A FE B A 2 Staff costs excluding retirement benefit
B T4 costs 12,717 11,496
B ARAR FIFE ) A Retirement benefits costs 592 422
FHoAth B T A< 48 %8 Total other staff costs 13,309 11,918
i B B i 8 s A B AL 4 Net operating lease rentals received and
e i} receivable
BEY A S Gross rents from investment properties (86,892) (86,719)
W BE T E A Less: Direct expenses from investment
HEH properties 24,965 28,105

(61,927) (58,614)
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A B IS AR TE B RE )

HE-_T-_—_F,A=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

9. I KEEME 9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
(W) HHM 4 (a) Directors’ emoluments
2022
0 T
HK$’000
M A Directors’ fees
HATESH Executive 1,520 1,480
W Sr JE AT E Independent non-executive 1,320 1,200
Al P 4 Other emoluments
3 4 B H A A5 Salaries and other benefits = -
AR AE A 5T E Contributions to retirement benefits
i 3% scheme 42 54
2,882 2,734
EAr e EN R (D — The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleventh
Forod ) EHREZA A MW (2021: eleventh) Directors were as follows:
T

H2Rk B
2 HAFA il 84k % -4
Salaries  Contributions
and other to retirement
Fees benefits  benefits scheme Total
i e b e WL i e
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
WiE Executive Directors
BAE L Dr. TAN Lucio C. 200 - - 200
HOWEE Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 360 = 18 378
TAN Carmen K. % 1: Mrs. TAN Carmen K. 200 - - 200
FLIESE Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 240 - 12 252
TAN Vivienne Khao % 1: Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao 240 = 1 252
TAN Irene Khao &t 1 (4% —) Ms. TAN Irene Khao (note i 280 = = 280
BEERE (WH=) Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan (note ii) = = = =
[ hes tiye Independent Non-executive Directors
i3 ks Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 360 = - 360
GO Patrick Lim % £ M. GO Patrick Lim 320 - - 320
NGU Angel St Mr. NGU Angel 200 - - 200
R Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony 40 = = 40

2840 - ) 2882
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9. WA KR HM S )

(W) Ao 4 ()

45 B R 1E B 5 ()

BE-_T-_—F,A=1HILFE Fortheyear ended 30 June 2022

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Hak R
Hopto A A fie e
Salaries  Contributions
and other to retirement
Fees benefits ~ benefits scheme Total
BT BT BHTT EWRT T
HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$'000
Ry Executive Directors
Bk Dr. TAN Lucio C. 200 - - 200
BOWEE Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 400 - 2 420
TAN Carmen K. % £ Mrs. TAN Carmen K. 200 - - 200
FIEIEEE Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 280 - 14 294
TAN Vivienne Khao % 1: Ms. TAN Vivienne Khao 200 - 10 210
BEHEE Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan 200 - 10 210
o gy Independent Non-executive Directors
HERIE Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 400 - - 400
EfELT (=) Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John (note iii) 160 - - 160
GO Patrick Lim /&t Mr. GO Patrick Lim 320 - - 320
NGU Angel /i Mr. NGU Angel 160 - - 160
B Mr. MA Chiu Tak, Anthony 160 - - 160
2,680 - 54 2,734
Viigza Notes:
— > TAN Irene Khao&Z A =% = —4 i Mr. TAN Irene Khao appointed as an Executive Director of
JUH DU H T AT B AN AT the Company on 14 September 2021.
ik
T EEFHEEERN E T A ii. Mr. CHUA Joseph Tam resigned as an Executive Director of

TLHBEALFRITES

1]

EMEM LR _F—FE ==
o H OB AR 2 T S IR AT
E

W~ R ST
A AR 2 ) R AR AR T o g AR
i i B

Tooc R SR SL IR AT N R
A A A Ry AR ) T A Y
e o

the Company on 17 December 2021.

iil. Dr. Fok Kam Chu, John resigned as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company on 31 March 2021.

iv. The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

v. The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as Directors of
the Company.
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HE-_T-_—_F,A=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

9. R iE B o) 9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(Z) REME (b) Employees’ emoluments
TR AF N> A B E AN ALY No Directors were included in the five highest paid
453 -F 1 NS o= individuals for both years. Details of Directors’ emoluments
R B SCHEEESSO(H) THN - A& are set out in note 9(a) above. The emoluments of the five
BEHMA L ZMEm T highest paid individuals are as follows:
2022
BT
HK$’000
FEA 3 4 S A Basic salaries and allowances 5,178 5,178
AR R R 4 Contributions to retirement benefit
scheme 174 174
5,352 5352
W45 2 B4 A - T B The emoluments were within the following bands:
R HEH
Number of employees
2022
4 2 15 11,000,000 70 Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 2
7 1,000,001 7C & HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
7 11,500,000 7T 1 1
7 1,500,001 70 & HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
1 12,000,000 7T 2 2
AR E BE A > A SR T ARE S ) AT ] R Y During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
CES EEES-3-F 1 PNa N the Directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as
T I N S0 A A B [ 2 5 B 5 AE 2 an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
Bl T A o IS AT ] R ) R AT for loss of office, nor any of the Directors of the Company has
AT <z o waived any emolument.

100 SR BEDRCFEEER | BOEEARAA




A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A RIBEMKE (@)

BE-_T-_—F,A=1HILFE Fortheyear ended 30 June 2022

10. Pifd B G A) B 10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) CHARGE
2022
BT
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BLIE (FFA) FUBR 45 - The tax (credit) charge comprises:
B IRE ) £ 2 T A5 Bl Enterprise Income Tax in the PRC
(F BRI (other than Hong Kong)
IR AE i Current year 6,565 5,805
6,565 5,805
RAEBLIE (FFA) F0BR Deferred tax (credit) charge
(M 7F 45 225) (note 22) (30,016) 21,124
(23,451) 26,929
A A 42 [ R AR BE A A 4 E R B U No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
> WO &7 A B BS I T NI 4 R U T A consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable
Bl HE o profit for both years.
AR v RS kR0 B A 3 BT A5 B I ([ 4k Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
B ABLY ) A 2T AT B E A Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
Bl > A A 1 v R B R A R B AR 5 25% e EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiary is 25%.
AN T AE A s S T B R L B S L Certain subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong
T B g A W] 3z FEANBL A A 0 By a% S ) and the British Virgin Islands are subject to withholding tax ranging
B ERBA SR A > EHERA K from 10% to 25% on their taxable rental income, management fee
FE A 1 10% %25% o income and interest income in the PRC.
008 402 3 TEL A AR R NG S B B R S 22 JE I o Details of the deferred tax liabilities are set out in note 22.
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HE-_T-_—_F,A=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

10. PifBe GGt A) R ) 10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) CHARGE (Continued)

WA BETREE B ZFENFE—J
— Hi# 5;’%6%01’2*"%3?%&%%&%
IRF JH A 5% M T AN RL o A B HRMR - 5t
I ) A AR A T I 2 B R AR A I R
TH 7 5142 4% AE ol TH 7 #5 952,952,000 7€ (
F A EE2,755,0000T) ©

The EIT Law also requires withholding tax upon distribution of
profits earned by the PRC entities since 1 January 2008 at 5%. At
the end of the reporting period, deferred taxation of HK$2,952,000
(2021: HK$2,755,000) has been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to such profits.

AR TE R T BL (REA) 0Bk AT BLAR 5 4R
it K A 2 T i 45 2R 2 R BT R ) IR

The income tax (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

LN and other comprehensive income as follows:
—E2
2022
B¥TIL
HKS$°000 HK3$°000
o B A1 s A1) Profit before taxation 7,233 15,141
Fi B R 25% 2 I 15 Bl 3 Income tax expense at the applicable rate
TR 1 25%) of 25% (2021: 25%) 1,808 3,785
A BLIE H% AN 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
Bl s 5 2 tax purpose 28,848 50,028
FHA B T N T B A Z Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
5 % purpose (22,677) (45,225)
o1 R ﬁ B tH 2 BB 228 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 3,902 3,622
A A S e 1 2 BB Tax effect of share of loss of a joint
A venture 2,915 2,253
B R ER B A LR Effect of different tax rate for subsidiaries
S g N ) 2 R in respect of withholding tax (8,254) (8,678)
R JB8 2 ) R 4 i U ) 22 Deferred tax liabilities resulting from
TAAR BT EE AR 2 withholding tax on undistributed profits
05 S0 A I A i of a subsidiary 280 (22)
AL LA B L Deferred tax effect on investment
A properties (30,296) 21,146
HoAs Others 23 20
AR 8L (FFA) FnkR Income tax (credit) charge (23,451) 26,929
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A RIBEMKE (@)

BE-_T-_—F,A=1HILFE Fortheyear ended 30 June 2022

1. A 11. DIVIDENDS
TR CE T
2022 2021
BYTI T T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
FH#®E_%—— Final dividend paid in respect of year
ANHZTHIEFEE IR ended 30 June 2021 of 1 Hong Kong
AR e g R T LA cent per share 2,377 -
FHEE T 4 Interim dividend paid in respect of year
ANHAH=ZTHIEFECIRE ended 30 June 2022 of 0.5 Hong Kong
Hh A A S R 0.5 41l cents (2021: 1 Hong Kong cent)
(R4 W) per share 1,189 2,377
3,566 2,377
e AANREHRETOLBRERSE At the reporting date, the final dividend in respect of 0.5 Hong
TR MFENA =T HOEFE R R Kong cents per share totaling HK$1,189,000 (2021: 1 Hong Kong
B Bk 0.5l - A LU 91,189,000 I cent per share totaling HK$2,377,000) for the year ended 30 June
(BT —4F GRSl > &tk 2022 has been proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to
2,377,000 7C) - HE 78 13 B S A% B 4E K approval by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.
& b o
12. HRkEN OBH) 12. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
AN B OTE AL A I A R i s 4R The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to
ThiE L N &R EHE the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

— B4
2022

W T
HKS$°000

FAVERT A A IEAZ ] (B5#H)  Earnings (loss) for the purposes of basic
W 2 A (5 18) earnings (loss) per share 31,152 (14,065)

B4 B H Number of shares
FIEST 0 O A 2 4 Weighted average number of ordinary
i 18 2 M % RET- ¥ # A shares for the purpose of basic
earnings (loss) per share 237,703,681 237,703,681
PR W R AR BE A I IV A B R AT For both years, no diluted earnings (loss) per share is presented as
e > I A 2 5 A B 2 R (1R o there are no potential ordinary shares in issue.
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HE-_T-_—_F,A=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

13 W3 - B Bk il

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

iNEER ! WA S

T &5 Wl RREM B

Leasehold Office

land and Motor equipment

building vehicles and others Total

BET T BET T BET T BET T

HKS$ 000 HKS$000 HKS$ 000 HKS$000
L% COST
REFZEREFLH A At 1 July 2020 1,552 4,762 3,009 9,323
SRR Exchange realignment 152 456 296 904
wE Additions - 801 18 819
WoE A=A At 30 June 2021 1,704 6,019 3,323 11,046
S R Exchange realignment (46) (163) (89) (298)
NE Additions - - 7 7
e Disposals - - (40) (40)
R-FBZZAEAN=TH At 30 June 2022 1,658 5,856 3,266 10,780
it DEPRECIATION
REFZERELN—H At 1 July 2020 952 3,728 2,663 7,343
iR Exchange realignment 95 373 268 736
R A E WA Provided for the year 79 333 153 565
Ao ECEAA=TH At30 June 2021 1,126 4434 3,084 8,644
SR Exchange realignment (32) (132) (88) (252)
IR i E A Provided for the year 81 364 159 604
T B R Eliminated on disposals - - (34) (34)
ROZHEAAZTH At 30 June 2022 1,175 4,666 3,121 8,962
W i CARRYING AMOUNTS
BB 4EAAZTH At 30 June 2022 483 1,190 145 1,818
REEZ—HAHA=TH At 30 June 2021 578 1,585 239 2,402

A 45 B A b RO T 2 i (B A A
B R e R ERE AR R T
b B R 03 2 T AT AT SR AR L - WO
T S UM ~ WA Bt

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land and building
comprises a property situated in the PRC. As the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire property is classified as property, plant and equipment.
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13. W% - BA R o)

TE % 58 B HL AL BRI B8 (A% > Bl -
W S BT E 2 R S AR R AR

13.

45 B R 1E B 5 ()

BE-_T-_—F,A=1HILFE Fortheyear ended 30 June 2022

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
at the following rates per annum after taking into account of their
estimated residual values:

FHE T b T A TH B K 20 4F Leasehold land and building Over shorter of lease term and
(DA 3 3 By E) 20 years
B 15% % 20% Motor vehicles 15% to 20%
W2 5 B I HA 10% % 33.3% Office equipment and others 10% to 33.3%
14. {3 PR 14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

RERZZAEANAZTH
W T B

WoE T —EANA =R
% T (L

BESR 4N ZHHIRERE
185 2

BE _F —FANHA=Z+THILEE
A

[ERTIN g &
BB U0 ok AR (WAt —)
INE I EEE ()

Total cash outflow for leases (note i)
Addition to right-of-use asset (note ii) =

GiN-EYES
Leased property
BT T
HK3$°000
As at 30 June 2022
Carrying amount 3,317
As at 30 June 2021
Carrying amount 5,651
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Depreciation charge 2,264
For the year ended 30 June 2021
Depreciation charge 2,342

RE-®-6  BE-ZF

AHZ1H ANH=1H

Ak 4R L4

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

BT W For

HKS$’000 HK$°000

Expense relating to short-term leases 799 703
3,264 2,962

6,792

Notes:

= RS AL A R A R AR B A i.
FLE AR 10 SR o %55 R I wE AR
HMGEBERET -

T AR IR BUA A 5 R A ii.
MR AT -
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Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease
liabilities and short-term leases. These amounts are included in
financing and operating cash flows respectively.

Amount represents lease modification arising from extension of an
existing office lease.
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14.

15.

106

18 1 HE %8 P )

T TE AR BE - A B R A AT
o HE S A E Wy = AF o A AR
W3 R o T ] R A B
AN T AR R B A T 7 E o E AR R
Feogt A ] {8 0 2 R AL A SR E T &
0 2 R % AT o ) BUAT B AT E AR

oA S DT S L A
BoE SR CE AR
L g 0L AL 4 B M B o 5
0 LS 1

AL W5 e S WG A AT B2 5E o BRAH IR
BE AN A g Ay A AR AN
FE AT AR AT AR A £ B 3 o

b L LS00 P L R
A -

B¥YE

14.

15.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases office for its operation. Lease
contract is entered into for fixed term of three years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As at
30 June 2022 and 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar
to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease
expense disclosed in this note.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.

Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The above item of right-of-use asset is depreciated over its lease
periods on a straight-line basis.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

&M T oo
HKS$'000

AV
BB oBELA—A
TR AR 26 79 e

SO R A

B E T EARNAZH
A
D PR T 18 i A R

40 9
RERZZAEAAZTH

A S5 [ DL KR AR AR A IR IO & e A
B R (E A ) S A 4
SRRV AS - WIRF i R e < g7/ S
PR

MoE D CER R ERAST
Ho AEMZEYE (BFLET - HER
AL AR B A ML D) 2 N PE TR R
S A A TSI A R e 2 ST AR A A
R 3% 55 B AT 2 A (E A5 - A
A BB AR SR A I L) SE AT
i (B 2 %L 5 o

FAIR VALUE
At 1 July 2020 1,910,689
Decrease in fair value recognised in

profit or loss (22,069)
Exchange realignment 186,301
At 30 June 2021 2,074,921
Additions 2,990
Decrease in fair value recognised in

profit or loss (17,223)
Exchange realignment (55,625)
At 30 June 2022 2,005,063

The investment properties of the Group held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model for both years. All the investment
properties are situated in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties (including
residential, commercial and carparks portions and office units) as at
30 June 2022 and 2021 has been arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out by independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group with appropriate qualification and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BEWE @)

EE TR EH ik 2 Wi 2 il it
bl 5 8 B 58 G AR o TR T R AN
BEESBEAYERE R HE A
EAAL o Nl Y 2 2 T R E
A o AN 51 B T I D Aok
2 5 18 1 A TR 517,223,000 8 (& T
A 22,069,000 0C) BN R #E K RERR

WA BRI EE T > AR FEA LR
TN, L EERHABE T 585
i #450438,000 7T ( . F T — 4 #k K
517,980,000 7T ) K #k #1,238,321,000 7T ( —
T A 1,230,650,000 7T ) B B
NI IR -3 1NSTHE- LR il N o =3
AR R 0 Al ST S B OT A & o B
FEEMEERANERL - WENE
B~ R T A W A AR b R
FH425%Z500%( = F = — 4 4.00% =
500%) > FE 7N 2y B R W OR BB 2R i A T
oo Wl H &AL R e E RN T E
WY 2 IR o AT L 2 T 5
AR B By AR A AL A T B oo 4
foEmEEHT T FRKAR¥KI02CE S
PR NR 22600 (R 4 T
B K NR W70 EF T kAR %216
JG) > Fon By 55— AR H RS ] B A A
JCE o BENANG T S BT & g R A
EBEN . R Z IR -

TEH P R AR E R o R R AE AR
b st B R A H 4 0 4 Al AR 45 iR
e #213,052,000 TG ( & = — 4E K
218,969,000 7C ) K # #103,252,000 JC ( —.
T4 ¥107,322,00000) ) EE AR
AT R o B KSR oA R E i
A B BE R A R S BT s R L R o
ffi 4 B8 M A E &84 T 35 B oOC B B
B Ty AIAS AR R E B AT AR
180,000 7€ % 4 ¥t A K #210,0007C (&
T—4E  Eor AR 185,000 0T E A B
gt N R #270,000 76 ) K & F ok AR
22,000 JC & A7 K A R ¥#64,000 96 (-
T BT R AR 19,0000 £
-5 K N B 64,000 70) Y AT HG T 35 B
JC§H AR o BN A A T o B
BN 2R o

A AF PR T A A (E 7 ik A AR ) o Y
fili 514 268 B W > W) 360 i B i £
iy OB o -

Z SUES L7 E LR Ra e FAR IR 1
LA =R e AW AE AR LA S = AR A
LLYNCT LY

15.

AR B 3% AR T BY RE (a)

HE-T-_—_F,"A=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The valuations were arrived at with adoption of the direct
comparison approach by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the market and where appropriate,
adopted the investment method by capitalising the rental income
of the properties derived from the existing tenancies with due
allowance for the reversionary income potential of the properties.
The revaluations gave rise to a net decrease in fair value of
HK$17,223,000 (2021: HK$22,069,000) which has been recognised
in profit or loss.

The key unobservable inputs used in valuing commercial
portions in Beijing and office units in Shanghai amounting to
HK$450,438,000 (2021: HK$517,980,000) and HK$1,238,321,000
(2021: HK$1,230,650,000) respectively under income capitalisation
approach were the capitalisation rates used and estimated market
unit rents of individual units. The capitalisation rate used, taking
into account of the capitalisation of rental income potential, nature
of the property, prevailing market condition, ranging from 4.25% to
5.00% (2021: 4.00% to 5.00%) represents significant unobservable
input. An increase in the capitalisation rate used would result in
a decrease in fair value and vice versa. Estimated market unit
rent of individual unit used, which derived from the market
rentals of comparable properties ranging from RMB102/sq.m. to
RMB226/sq.m. (2021: RMB97/sq.m. to RMB216/sq.m.) per month
represents another significant unobservable input. An increase in the
estimated market unit rent would result in an increase in fair value
and vice versa.

The key unobservable input used in valuing the carparks and
residential portions in Beijing, amounting to HK$213,052,000 (2021:
HK$218,969,000) and HK$103,252,000 (2021: HK$107,322,000)
respectively under direct comparison approach was the estimated
market unit sales rate with adjustment on other factors, such as
condition and location. Estimated market unit sales of carparks and
residential portions used, which derived from the markets unit sales
comparables ranging from RMB180,000/unit to RMB210,000/unit
(2021: RMB185,000/unit to RMB270,000/unit) and RMB22,000/sq.m.
to RMB64,000/sq.m. (2021: RMB19,000/sq.m. to RMB64,000/sq.m.)
respectively, represents the significant unobservable input. An
increase in the estimated market unit sales used would result in an
increase in fair value and vice versa.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties is classified as

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or
out of Level 3 during both years.
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16.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE

- S

2022

BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
BEMA S LW Cost of investment, unlisted 217,293 206,179

Wi B 1% M 4R % MR A 1 o 4 Share of post-acquisition losses and
reserves (126,130) (114,348)
R g Interest in a joint venture 91,163 91,831
BB IR Amount due from a joint venture 235,768 242,129
Mt - Note:

TR o 1 s 2 A7 PR =) ([ I |) Jy v 4
BEHAEAR S Wh AL F RIEEA - AR
TR G A 2E AT R S0% B S HE - SR AR AR
S A A I 3 10 5 i Ll PR

A AR A SR B R Oy 5 S I e
V1 B HEHE 2 R 4R o B O AR R R o g TP
BOEAT AR - T A 5 B B &
B O R RN R R T

TERR YL - AR E 1) I3 AN R 542,840,000
TCAE 2 A& WA - A Y11 R HE A 45 19 80% o AR
PE R E AR PR e > DN TE 2 G I AR
W8 Ay N R 521,000,000 76 A AR 4 [ K Py
B EB AR E A R 10,290,000 7T & A R
10,710,000 JG - 1 A5 42 ) K R O7 A R B A
Bl FE AT I 2 2 T 25 49% S 51% o A H
A& ECE N R 632,550,000 7T #5458 B AR 4R
i) 31 2E R M) R o

WG Ab > e — AR R R M R S A S A
Je 1 6 M 2K 4 LA [ M HE AT 0 0
DIVSR A B — 1 - M R B R R AT B e A R
8 AR A [ A 43 D 80% o BRLTE I 3E Y i 4
B o

BB RALEAH = AL A
SR 145 B E 2 400 BLAE RS 5t AR 31 4
R R L WA AR
o T4 2 B BRI B 2 AT -

B A B e AT A D 3 A0 RS i B A vk R
B G49% N FERELS) o BN EHGE L
PR R TIRPR A T A E SN — SR
WMHE T AENAZTH HPE
T 31% 4 3t ik 110,368,000 G ( % = —4F ¢ i
510,368,000 70 ) 4= £E [ 3if ok T LA fERR o

Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”) was a sino-
foreign equity joint venture company and indirectly held by the Company.
The Group was able to exercise 50% voting power in the joint venture, which
was determined by the proportion of the Group’s representatives in the board
of directors of Zhen Wah.

The Group had lodged petitions for international arbitrations in respect of the
dispute with the Chinese joint venture partner as to the percentages of equity
interest held in Zhen Wah in prior years. Two arbitral proceedings were
heard and two arbitral awards were made by China International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission in 2008 and 2010.

Before the arbitrations, the Group injected RMB42,840,000 as investment
cost to Zhen Wah, representing 80% of equity interests in Zhen Wah.
Pursuant to the arbitral award made in 2008, the registered capital of Zhen
Wah was confirmed to be RMB21,000,000, of which RMB10,290,000
and RMB10,710,000 were contributed by the Group and the Chinese joint
venture partner, respectively, and that the equity interests of Zhen Wah were
held by the Group and the Chinese joint venture partner as to 49% and 51%,
respectively. The additional capital contribution of RMB32,550,000 by the
Group was considered as advances to Zhen Wah by the Group.

Also, the arbitral award made in 2010 supported the distribution of profit
arising from relevant income generated from a piece of land held by Zhen
Wabh located in Tung Kok Tau, Shenzhen, the PRC before re-development,
of which the Group should be entitled to a share of 80% in line with share of
total capital contributed to Zhen Wah.

The assets and liabilities of Zhen Wah were deconsolidated and the Group’s
share of net assets and results in Zhen Wah had been accounted for as a joint
venture under the equity method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in
Zhen Wah since the year ended 30 June 2009.

The distribution of profit arising from relevant income was accounted
for under the equity method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in
Zhen Wah. The additional share of 31% up to 30 June 2022 which has
not been recognised by the Group amounted to HK$10,368,000 (2021:
HK$10,368,000), as the Directors consider the result of the arbitration is
subject to the agreement of the Chinese joint venture partner.
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16. BBAERHER ABEERK 16.
(4#)
W (40

DNEEWFEO R =F —WE A+ HE
o YITE &80 Ty P A S AR
WY A A A P RS I 2 R o R
i E I R 1 AR BE 1 AR T S I 2E 2 A R Rt o
190 2 AT — [H] 4 0 2 5 7 A A WIS 1) 0 S A o

R v I A R B o DL R B BT 2 Ak
A8 R 3 A R R R O A B R 3 E ARG )
JiEh AR M B AR AR P DIk AR
W3 SR A7 AE > FL O L N o A 9 R O AR HK
MEEPHE T NERD T SE BT -
T AR AR BN N € — AR R ST o
R ERBALIIERALEN G E S
3 DARE £ 74 R 5% 55 A B S MR IE

A K Ay SR R AR BB RO R R
B+ AR EE - R EST% (2
T AR 6%) A B ARG A R -

MRoE - AHENA=ZTH BEROREMESES
FEME B BB A FE KR W]k TE BB T A Bl
#:191,163,000 70 (& . —4F : #%91,831,000
JC) K s 235,768,000 70 ( & 4 ¢ K
242,1290007C) - B E ~FE ~ 4ENA=Z+H
IE AR B > I 7 o R T R L [ A
SF 1A M B 010 7 S M AR S AT R A AR -
AR PN FE (19 JoRT B S G R BOF R E AT (E
R A A Y RE 2R AR A% vT A ol E
T 8 e £ 8 A 28 R T I (S Bl R R K -
PRI > ABE 06 T R s 48 v Al o

BE-F - _FR-FFANA=Z1THI
R G A ORI M B TR RN R R
B B EE S 310H o

MoB - HEREENASTHBS
AN

TREELM P 3 [

Name of joint venture

Place of establishment

45 B R 1E B 5 ()
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Both joint
venture partners of Zhen Wah determined not to extend its operation period
and an application was lodged to liquidate Zhen Wah in prior years. The PRC
court accepted the application for liquidation of Zhen Wah and appointed a
law firm in the PRC as the liquidation committee of Zhen Wah in prior years.

Based on the PRC laws and regulations and the related interpretations by
an external PRC legal counsel engaged by the Group, after the expiry of the
operation period and even during the liquidation process, the legal identity
of Zhen Wah still exists and the net assets of Zhen Wah will be distributed
to the joint venture partners based on their equity contributions after the
completion of the liquidation. The Directors expect that the liquidation
process will not complete within one year. Accordingly, the Directors
continue to account for Zhen Wah as a joint venture of the Group using the
equity method of accounting in these consolidated financial statements.

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured and to be repayable after
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period. The amount is
carried at amortised cost at an effective interest rate of 5.7% (2021: 6%) per
annum.

The Directors have assessed the recoverability of interest in a joint venture
and amount due from a joint venture amounting to HK$91,163,000
(2021: HK$91,831,000) and HK $235,768,000 (2021: HK $242,129,000),
respectively, as at 30 June 2022. During the year ended 30 June 2022, Zhen
Wah was granted for the extension of land construction planning permit for
the new piece of land situated in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan District, Shenzhen,
the PRC. Based on the latest financial information and fair value of net assets
of Zhen Wabh, the Directors have concluded that the amount of interest in a
joint venture will be fully recoverable and the ECL on amount due from a
joint venture is immaterial. Therefore, no loss allowance was recognised.

Details of credit loss assessment of the amount due from a joint venture for
the year ended 30 June 2022 and 2021 are set out in note 31.

Particulars of the joint venture as at 30 June 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Ik T
Zhen Wah PRC
Mt - PITEALEIN B —AE— ] HNH

JEW o 2% - YIHE A L HARE A OB R
TR -
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7 4 18 5 A H 2 L ERH
The Group’s
equity interest Principal activity
49% AL RE (Hfat)
49% Operation ceased (Note)

Note: The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014.
Thereafter, Zhen Wah ceased its operation and is now in the process
of liquidation.
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R 7 i SV B ot ) bR T M AR 0K A R
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Summarised financial information prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs in respect of the Group’s joint venture which is accounted
for using the equity method is set out below:

St et 1

2022

BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
IE I B G Non-current assets 266,706 274,743
ik IR <gzd Current assets 62,598 173,188
i B A Current liabilities (111,031) (212,601)
P I B=E Non-current liabilities (235,768) (242,129)
(17,495) (6,799)

bt EE R ARSHEAHFMT

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the followings:

R4
2022

W T

HK$°000 HK$°000

Re kB 4% H Cash and cash equivalents 54,510 160,304
JE UL B A (R Non-current financial liabilities (excluding
B Gy B At I A T 3K 2 trade and other payables and provision)
HEAH) (235,768) (242,129)
TR T4 TR A
NH=1H NH=1H
IR4EJE 1E 4 B
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BT BT
HKS$°000 HK3$°000
(LN Revenue — _
ARAEE G R Loss for the year (23,799) (18,389)
A HoAh 2T (1) Other comprehensive (expense) income
PN for the year (245) 1,083
A A TH ST Total comprehensive expense for the year
MR (24,044) (17,306)
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LR E R AE T

FLE A
FLB 3

Interest income

Interest expense

o B At B B ORI 2N R S BB R
TH N eGR4 7 A SEME AR RO AR T (L -

AR EMEE (&)
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

The above loss for the year includes the following:

R g SE—AE
AH=TH AHZ=1H
1Y) IR4E
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
AT T 8 9T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000

45 18

13,780 14,167

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

R4
2022

T
HK$’000

HK$°000

BT AE Net liabilities of joint venture (17,495) (6,799)
AL TG E A SR A Y Proportion of the Group’s ownership

Ao interest in a joint venture 49% 49%

(8,573) (3,332)

AR By P Ak A — Deemed capital contribution — imputed

CHEREIISY PN interest income 99,736 95,163
AREE A B ERERN Carrying amount of the Group’s interest

N T L in a joint venture 91,163 91,831

17. HoAb 4w & s R AT 3K 17. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

PREPAYMENTS

() 5 B I il M O K B AT K

(i) Trade and other receivables and prepayments

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for credit losses

5 I Wi IR K
B B A

A7 3K S AT B 2 /)

companies
JE i L Interest receivables
oAt RE IR 3R~ A7 K Other receivables, deposits and
TE AT 3K prepayments

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

Deposits and amounts due from related

—R U
2022
T
HKS$’000
14,491 4,977
(2,808) (1,942)
11,683 3,035
2,573 3,397
1,351 1,415
7,319 4455
22,926 12,302
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17.
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30 fib 4 ik 26 A2 B AT K )

@

U 5 B 3G i M MR Kk B WA K ()

B oy BE IR A A B A& 2 FH B
W Rk > H R B SRR o J
R D B S R SOIR B BRI £
TR > WiCHORE < 3% B) B A o

AL R 2 5 S0 530
H(ZZF_—4 :30H) -

REHmBE URMERE B8 A
e T 25 E 5 R IR KO
14,491,000 7T ( & — —4F i W
4,977,000 JG ) > 1 411K A5 &
12,808,000 JC ( & " — 4 ¢ Hk i
1,942,000 G ) 2 {FREMREE AT an T

17. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments (Continued)

Trade receivables represent rental receivables from tenants
which are payable on presentation of invoices. The collection
is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk associated
with these receivables.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days (2021:
30 days) for tenants.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables of
HK$14,491,000 (2021: HK$4,977,000) net of allowance
for credit losses of HK$2,808,000 (2021: HK$1,942,000)
presented based on the date of rendering services at the end
of the reporting period:

OH E30H K 0 — 30 days
31A %60 H 31— 60 days
61 H %90 H K 61 —90 days
90 H A k= More than 90 days

A W TE 52 % 5 A R
FrafAd o G EE G A TEE & S A EE
ENIIF: Wik Rk & -SRI 1 EE
A EHIN E W EH -

M AENA=ZTH AEEY
5 A R 0 45 R THT 1 9% 6 5,135,000
JC(E T4 i 1293,00000) 2
EHH > ZRERREHAC M -
P& A B0 H skl
By 4100070 (& T —4F -
37,0007C) > A EEER R AHEKR
sl HAA R BEE B T el > A ik
AR BB A o A% 52 B 408 5 5% 4%
BB R AT T o

BE XM E—FXRNA
=+ HILERE > 85 K AR R
SRS B e 48 R AL FE R A0 M R
H31IE o

. St
2022
W T
HKS$’000
9,231 2,817
1,710 118
701 63
41 37
11,683 3,035

Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out
assessment on the creditability of the new customer and
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly.

As at 30 June 2022, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$5,135,000 (2021: HK$293,000) which are past due at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$41,000
(2021: HK$37,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Details of credit loss assessment of the trade and other
receivables for the year ended 30 June 2022 and 2021 are set
out in note 31.
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17. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder

The amount is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

Details of credit loss assessment of the amount due from a
non-controlling shareholder for the year ended 30 June 2022
and 2021 are set out in note 31.

Fixed bank deposits

Fixed bank deposits with original maturity of more than three
months carry interest at market rates ranging from 1.55% to
2.25% (2021: 1.55% to 2.25%) per annum.

Details of credit loss assessment of the fixed bank deposits
for the year ended 30 June 2022 and 2021 are set out in note
31.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
deposits with banks which are not restricted in use with the
original maturity of three months or less. Bank balances carry
interest at market rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.30% (2021:
0.001% to 0.30%) per annum.

Details of credit loss assessment of the bank balances and
cash for the year ended 30 June 2022 and 2021 are set out in
note 31.

113




e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GAEMBEIREME (@)

HE-_T-_—_F,A=THIFE Forthe year ended 30 June 2022

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at 30 June 2022, the balance of trade and other payables included
trade payables of HK$3,158,000 (2021: HK$2,794,000). The
following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

R4
2022

BT
HK$°000

18. B 5 B JU fib A Bk 3% 18.
MROETZTENAZTH BE R HA
JRE A5 B 2K 4% i 60 45 95 53,158,000 JC (&
T4 2,794,000 TT) 2 B 5 EAT IR
oo N RARMIR > LAEETE H ] 4 e iy
258 5 MEAT IR 2 BRES A AT A
0H ZE60H N 0 - 60 days
61 H %90 H A 61 — 90 days
90 H A | Over 90 days
Al R A B 3 T B A 4 B R A 4 A 3K
TE 7 %514,229,000 0 ( & —4F ¢ B
17,132,000 7)) > T8 i 2K JH it 2,848,000 7C
(& —4F 0 % ¥5336,000 0 ) K HAth
JHE A} B 3K 7 155,887,000 7T ( % T —4F ¢
##57.459,000 JC) ©

19. ALE A4 19.

HEHE

TR —AE R

1,302
234 -
1,622

3,158 2,794

The other payables mainly include rental deposits received of
HK$14,229,000 (2021: HK$17,132,000), receipt in advance of
HK$2,848,000 (2021: HK$5,336,000) and other tax payable of
HK$5,887,000 (2021: HK$7,459,000).

LEASE LIABILITIES

—® A
2022

W T
HKS$°000

HKS$°000

Lease liabilities payable:

T AR A — 4F {H AN R A 7 4F 1Y
W1 TH A

T A A Y 4 L AS B A T 4F 1Y
1M A

W SR B BRI
124/ H A &5E 2
HIH

B4 J i B B AR A A
12 A 12 B 450 < 0H

AR B A E R 22 0 T Y B AR
TR F53.90% (& ——4 1 390%) °

114

Within one year ASTTR 2,283
Within a period of more than one year but
not exceeding two years 1,134 2,372
Within a period of more than two years but
not exceeding five years - 1,134
3,506 5,789
Less: Amount due for settlement with
12 months shown under current
liabilities (2,372) (2,283)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months
shown under non-current liabilities 1,134 3,506

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease
liabilities is 3.90% (2021: 3.90%).
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20. ST EEEK 20. BANK LOAN
2022 2021
BT T or
HK$’000 HK$°000
B IEPERAT 8% Secured bank loan 91,833 95,667
JRE {5 75 % 1 Carrying amount repayable (based on the
(R 4788 8 35 T e T L scheduled repayment dates set out in the
FEEE B W) - loan agreements):
— KN Within one year 91,833 3,834
— AR BN B A More than one year but not exceeding
two years - 91,833
91,833 95,667
Wc A i B B A T 2R R Less: Amounts due within one year
— A 7Ry £ ROH shown under current liabilities (91,833) (3,834)
B4 FE i B & 5 KO Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities - 91,833
SRAT B A LA A p B B 0 4B ) 3 R The bank loan is secured by portion of its investment properties
BT RATIF AR AE SR o SRAT BB DAV I situated in Shanghai, the PRC and certain bank deposits. The bank
- loan is denominated in HKS$.
WG CR AR R R B E145% (=% The loan carried interest at variable rate of 1.45% (2021: 1.45%)
TR 145%) 2RI AR SR - over HIBOR per annum.
21, B 21. SHARE CAPITAL
JBe 4 8 H W
Number of shares Amount
BT T
HK$°000
T 5 85 1,00 T 2 0% 40 e 17 Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each
HE Authorised:
REZEFELA—H At 1 July 2020,
R ERAZTHRE 30 June 2021 and
“E - HENA=ZTH 30 June 2022 300,000,000 300,000
AT R Issued and fully paid:
WoEZEELEA—H At 1 July 2020,
SR ERAZTHR 30 June 2021 and
ZECCHEANAZTH 30 June 2022 237,703,681 237,704
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116

B %t B A 4K 22.

DA A% 4E T 0 B 1 1A 9 T e
W R AR IE 6 A B )

are as follows:

ROECEE LA H
L
AR P (A B

At 1 July 2020
Exchange realignment
(Credit) charge to profit or loss

noE
PR
@ ELETON

—4#NA=+H  At30June 2021
Exchange realignment
Charge (credit) to profit or loss

MRZBZ4AEANH=1+TH  At30 June 2022

WZERZEANAZT R ALET
FHVE K 85 oK A it R T oK ffF A B IE s 48
By W 236555000 00 ( & L —4F i K
220,456,000 7C ) ° H A& g #E E A& K i F
Yoo WA A R R A B TE R B o A% B IH
Jhe 48 ] 0% R A 45 o o

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods

o B Y 4+
A 43 Wil A B %
Undistributed
earnings of
a PRC Investment
subsidiary properties Total
T T ki BT T
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
2,531 250,873 253,404
246 25,035 25,281
(22) 21,146 21,124
2,755 297,054 299,809
(83) (7,077) (7,160)
280 (30,296) (30,016)
2,952 259,681 262,633

be carried forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2022, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$236,555,000 (2021: HK $220,456,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such tax losses may
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) EBeREREEY - MES
B B AR B O RSO & R AR SR B A
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Bl i 2 Bl i BOR AR B & i i -

RZF_ZELA—H
A E
TR AT B R
R A HE

EAF AR

EEIRKE

FE#EMA

CA R (B sE11E)
SR

RoFEZ—FRAZTH
WS A EER

IR IRAT EEBCHOR
HRAEAE

AL

EEIRRE

FE %A
CATE (M 11E)
AR

BREEZZEAAZTH

At 1 July 2020

New lease liabilities raised
Repayment of bank loan
Repayment of lease liabilities
Interest paid

Dividends declared

Interest expense

Dividends paid (note 11)
Exchange adjustment

At 30 June 2021

New lease liabilities raised
Repayment of bank loan
Repayment of lease liabilities
Interest paid

Dividends declared

Interest expense

Dividends paid (note 11)
Exchange adjustment

At 30 June 2022

45 B R 1E B 5 ()

BE-_T-_—F,A=1HILFE Fortheyear ended 30 June 2022

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

HE £ AR

(B

oAb B A

Jeak)  BEARA

Interest

payable

(included

Bank in other Dividend Lease

loan payables) payable liabilities Total
BT BFTT EFTT BFTT EFTI
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
(99,507) (26) - (1,131) (100,664)
- - - (6,792) (6,792)
4,000 - - - 4,000
- - - 2,118 2,118
- 1,563 - 141 1,704
- - (2,377) - (2,377)
(161) (1,645) - (141) (1,947)
- - 2,377 - 2,377
1 1 - 16 18
(95,667) (107) - (5,789) (101,563)
3,973 - - - 3,973
- - - 2,283 2,283
- 1,493 - 182 1,675
- - (3,566) - (3,566)
(166) (1,509) - (182) (1,857)
- - 3,566 - 3,566
27 10 - - 37
(91,833) 113) - (3,506) (95,452)
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24.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS

The Company previously adopted a share option scheme on 9
December 2011 (the “2011 Scheme”) and it has expired on 8
December 2021. On 17 December 2021, an ordinary resolution
was passed by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company approving the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “2021 Scheme”) which will be valid and
effective for 10 years and will expire on 16 December 2031. The
2011 Scheme is a share incentive scheme adopted for the purpose
of recognising and acknowledging the contributions that Eligible
Participants (defined herein below) of the 2011 Scheme had made
or may make to the Group, whereas the 2021 Scheme is a share
incentive scheme adopted for the purpose of providing incentive or
reward, recognising and acknowledging the contributions and/or
efforts that Eligible Participants (defined herein below) of the 2021
Scheme had made or may make to the Group.

The Board of Directors of the Company may at its discretion grant
options under the 2011 Scheme to any Directors, employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries and such eligible participants at the
discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to
the terms thereof; whereas the Board of Directors of the Company
may at its discretion grant options under the 2021 Scheme to any
Director, proposed Director (whether executive or non-executive
and whether independent or not), employee of the Group or an
affiliate or the holding company of the Company (if applicable)
whom the Board of Directors of the Company in its sole discretion
considers will contribute or has contributed to any member of the
Group or an affiliate or the holding company of the Company (if
applicable) (collectively the “Eligible Participants™).

Under both the 2011 Scheme and 2021 Scheme, the Board of
Directors of the Company may grant share options (the “Options”)
to Eligible Participants at the sole discretion of the Board of
Directors of the Company according to the terms thereof, to
subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”), at an exercise
price per Share as the Board of Directors of the Company may in
its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the relevant
Option and notified to each Eligible Participant, which shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price per Share of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant of the relevant Option, which must be a business day; or (ii)
an amount equivalent to the average closing price per Share of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the relevant Option under the 2021 Scheme; and the above (i), (ii)
or (iii) the nominal value of a Share under the 2011 Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The total number of Shares available for issue under Options
which may be granted under the 2011 Scheme, 2021 Scheme and
any other share option schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of the
adoption of the relevant share option scheme. Under the 2021
Scheme, such 10% represents 23,770,368 Shares, which continue
to represent approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report. The maximum number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2011 Scheme,
2021 Scheme and any other schemes involving the issue or grant
of options or similar rights over Shares or other securities by the
Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30 per cent of the Shares

in issue from time to time.

No Option under the 2011 Scheme or 2021 Scheme may be granted
to any Eligible Participants which if exercised in full would result
in the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the Options already granted or to be granted to such Eligible
Participant under the 2011 Scheme or 2021 Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding Options), respectively, in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such new grant
exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of such new grant. Any grant of further Options above this
limit shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at general meeting, with such Eligible Participant and (i)
its associates for the 2011 Scheme and (ii) its close associates (or
his associates if the Eligible Participant is a connected person) for
the 2021 Scheme abstaining from voting.

The option period for which the Options granted are exercisable,
shall be such period as notified by the Board of Directors of the
Company as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company
in its absolute discretion, save that it shall not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant. The offer of an Option may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer. A nominal consideration
of HK$1 is payable by the grantee on acceptance of the Option offer
under the 2011 Scheme, whereas no payment is required by the
grantee for acceptance of the Option offer under the 2021 Scheme.
At the time of granting any Option, the Board of Directors of the
Company may, on a case by case basis and subject to the provisions
of the Listing Rules, make such grant on such terms and conditions
as the Board of Directors of the Company may determine in its
absolute discretion, including the minimum period of the Options to
be held and/or the performance targets to be achieved before such
Options may be exercised.
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25.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Subject to the provisions of the 2011 Scheme or 2021 Scheme, the
Listing Rules and other applicable rules and regulations, the Board
of Directors of the Company may, on a case by case basis and at
its discretion when offering the grant of an Option, impose any
conditions, restrictions or limitations in relation thereto additional
to those expressly set forth in the 2011 Scheme or the 2021 Scheme
as it may think fit (which shall be stated in the letter containing the
offer of the grant of the Option) including (without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing) conditions, restrictions or limitations
relating to the minimum period for which the Options are to be
held and/or the achievement of operating or financial targets, the
satisfactory performance of certain obligations or the time or period
when the right to exercise the Option in respect of all or some of the
Shares the subject of the Option will vest.

As at 30 June 2021, all Options under the 2011 Scheme had been
exercised or lapsed.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, no Options under the 2011
Scheme and 2021 Scheme had been issued, granted, exercised or
lapsed. As at the date of this annual report, no Options under the
2021 Scheme had been issued, granted, exercised or lapsed.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

The Group has given financial guarantees in respect of the
settlement of home loans provided by banks to the home buyers of
a property project in Beijing, the PRC. At 30 June 2022, the Group
had given financial guarantees in respect of such home loans of
HK$5,000 (2021: HK$71,000). The Directors consider that the
fair values of these financial guarantee contracts at their initial
recognition and at the end of the reporting period are insignificant
on the basis of the low loan to value ratio.

Details of the credit loss allowance for the given financial
guarantees are set out in note 31.
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OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessor

Contingent rental income was calculated based on the excess of
certain percentage of revenue of the relevant operation of the lessees
who occupied certain of the properties over the fixed portion of the
monthly rentals. Contingent rental income earned during the year
ended 30 June 2022 is HK$2,475,000 (2021: HK$3,609,000).

All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed lessees
for the next one to six years (2021: the next one to five years).

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

w—FN Within one year
I s In the second year
R = AR In the third year
A5 Y A In the fourth year
A ER AR In the fifth year
A TAEAR After five years

EHRWR > DT EE AR

[Ea<L/ES
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Investment properties

—® U
2022
0T
HKS$’000
60,517 61,773
36,879 41,425
25,486 13,109
14,638 6,646
9,541 3,237
8,081 -
155,142 126,190

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were rented
out under operating leases:

— B4
2022

#W T
HKS$°000

HKS$°000

1,523,401 1,456,649

2022
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

@

(b)

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated a defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme (“Defined
Contribution Scheme”) for its qualifying Directors and
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Defined
Contribution Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Where there are Directors and employees who leave the
Defined Contribution Scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the amount of the forfeited contributions will
be used to reduce future contributions payable by the Group.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has set up a
MPF Scheme. Members of the Defined Contribution Scheme
were given one-time option to choose to transfer to the
MPF Scheme or remain in the existing scheme. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules. No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years by the employer.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from
the Defined Contribution Scheme and the MPF Scheme
recognised in profit or loss represent contributions payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes.

There are no forfeited contributions in both years which arose
upon employees leaving the Defined Contribution Scheme
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable
by the Group under the Defined Contribution Scheme in the
future years.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiary and joint venture are required to
contribute 20% and 9% of the stipulated salary set by the
Beijing and Shenzhen local governments, respectively, to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the retirement benefits of

their employees.

During the year, the retirement benefits scheme contributions
recognised in profit or loss are HK$634,000 (2021: HK$476,000).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

In regards to the guarantees given by the Group for home loans
provided by banks to certain buyers as disclosed in note 25, the
Group has pledged its bank deposits of HK$241,000 (2021:
HK$933,000) to banks to secure such home loans granted to the
home buyers. The deposits carry floating interest rate of 0.33%
(2021: 0.30%) per annum on average and will be released upon the
earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate and the
relevant property pledged to the bank; and (ii) the full repayment of
mortgage loan by the home buyers.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had pledged portion of its investment
properties situated in Shanghai, the PRC, with a carrying amount of
HK$823,209,000 (2021: HK$805,211,000), certain bank balances
and bank deposits of HK$36,383,000 (2021: HK$27,429,000),
an assignment of rental and sale proceeds from the investment
properties and a charge over share in respect of the Group’s 100%
equity interest in Move On International Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to the bank to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group. The pledged bank
deposits carry interest rate of 2.06% (2021: 1.65%) per annum.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has entered into the following transactions

with related companies:

- S
2022 2021
V.3 5T T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
2 &l A Rental income received 1,053 1,024
SRR N PN Other income received 450 413
g A M E Interest expenses on lease liabilities 182 144
A E A B Expenses relating to short-term leases 206 206
(g S Management fee expenses 2,593 2,960
A5 TR 1) A s Consultancy service fees paid 2,200 2,200
ST I 2 Agency fees paid 753 732
CATAT EL Administrative expenses paid 1,058 997
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Other balances with related companies at 30 June 2022 and 2021
are as follows:

- S
2022
W T
HK$’000
i I HE G Right-of-use asset 3,317 5,651
HEHE Lease liabilities
—nH — Current 2,372 2,283
—JEmE — Non-current 1,134 3,506
AN H A R SR R 2 A B Deposits due from related companies
s W) A RO (M —) included in other receivables (Note i) 528 526
A9 N L Ath B A R 3K 2 A R Amounts due from related companies
8 A KM E—) included in other receivables (Note i) 2,045 2,871
Ay N H A B AT R 3k 2 K AT BHBE Amounts due to related companies included
N TR (B EE =) in other payables (Note i) 4,084 2,857
TEHE e e TR R K (Bt —) Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder (Note i) 894 919
Yiid=a Notes:

- RIOEFHERFCFERNA=ZT
H oo RIE 2 ST - B R A 2R Iy
B o

T ROFR D CHER ST EARNH =+

H oo SR 2 ST - e B R A 2R Ny
AT o

A B2 R TG B AR o R AT R

S E

AEMERERAELTAHEE . 5%
B I 15 L6 R RE SR O () TH N ek -

B 7 o B 4 B

A5 R AR RS AR 0B R T B RE
i A% R FE e ST L O A SR Y
TR AT ARG > S A B R Al A A e [
o A% B2 T R L SRS B AR BE AR BN

A A ) 2 B AR BN b AR A (B L B
AT 5 20 T N 956 5 1 BRAT A B~ T BB
Fo B4 S B A xR N HE A HE A (2
5 OB AT A ~ R B 3 P S LA oA
ALAL -

30.

i. Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand at 30
June 2022 and 2021.

il. Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand at 30
June 2022 and 2021.

The related companies are companies controlled by certain
Directors.

The Group’s key management personnel are all Directors, details of
their remuneration are disclosed in note 9(a).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loan as disclosed in note 20, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, retained profits and other reserves.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the Directors review annual budgets taking into account
the provision of funding. Based on the operating budgets, the
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital and balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)  Categories of financial instruments

- S
2022 2021
BT 8 For
HK$’000 HK3$’000
b E R Financial assets
DL 6 A S o Y 4 R Financial assets at amortised cost 575,299 590,792
Al Financial liabilities
e 85 AL A Amortised cost 127,018 131,949

(&) 4 ih ol B 452U B % 8OOSR

AL ERE M TR OQESE
A 36 R B O - B 5 I
A B AR AR~ T B RBEOR G
SRATHRA A7~ BRAT S WIAF 3K - 4R
TTHE R R Bl ~ B 5y B A RE A iR
FOoMATEH HEAMCKE
MM ELE - %S TR
392 5 T R R R SR O o BELRZ AR B T
AR B B0 L B B A T L B (B
JE g A0 R A B ) A BB
5 < g ) A Y A AR Y
JEBE o 1T S TR B A e 9
A JE B B BORE o AR 4R AR RS A B
B B 525 45 I B > LA AR B BRE AT 2
Hi PR I I o

S ) 2. 325 AL o L 2
e o B 7 X B 1 4 i 5
& o

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount
due from a joint venture, loan receivables, trade and other
receivables, amount due from a non-controlling shareholder,
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, bank loan, lease liabilities
and long-term rental deposits received. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk,
liquidity risk and risks arising from interest rate benchmark
reform. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
these kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risks from the prior year.
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31, BT H 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
() 4w be 4% P H BE B WOoR (47) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
U Market risk
0 R (i) Currency risk
ASE AT H T LUANE S E The Group undertakes certain transactions
Z Gy o A BUR 2 AN denominated in foreign currencies, which expose the
JE B o A H H AR A AN Group to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
B BOR o R AL EE does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
P e o W B AR A A Y A However, the management of the Group regularly
L R R e monitors the Group’s foreign exchange exposure and
g 3 P E R A1 LB will consider hedging significant foreign exchange

exposure should the need arise.

AEEDIETEZBHYG The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
E R W AR E A RAT denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
B T B A AN AR AT B K A (mainly include bank balances and cash and bank loan)
HHIRMEEMT at the reporting date are as follows:
TR 4R
2022
BYTIL
HKS$’000 HK$°000
¥ Assets
i HKS$ 43,012 21,191
FEa (X4 United States dollars (“US$”) 712 7,599
i Liabilities
ki HK$ 98,741 104,184
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2021: 5%) increase or decrease in RMB against
HKS$ and USS. 5% (2021: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used which represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currencies denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2021: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease in
post-tax loss for the year where RMB strengthen 5%
(2021: 5%) against the relevant currencies. For a 5%
(2021: 5%) weakening of RMB against the relevant
currencies, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss for the year and the
balances below would be negative.

B 2 0 5

Effect on profit or loss
R 4R R
2022 2021
W T 7 BT
HKS$°000 HK3$°000
2,090 3,112

27) (285)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the relevant years.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits (see note
17(iii) for details) and lease liabilities (see note 19
for details). The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk primarily in relation to variable-
rate bank loan (see note 20 for details) amounting to
HK$91,833,000 (2021: HK$95,667,000). The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates on bank balances
and HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong
dollar denominated bank loan. The interest rate risk
of bank deposits and bank balances are considered
insignificant as the bank deposits are substantially
short-term deposits and fluctuation in interest rate
of bank balances is limited. The variable-rate bank
loan with original maturity instalments of three years.
An increase in interest rates would increase interest
expenses. The Group currently does not have interest
rate hedging policy, however, management monitors
interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including
the replacement of some interbank offered rates with
alternative nearly risk-free rates. Details of the impacts
on the Group’s risk management strategy arising from
the interest rate benchmark reform and the progress
towards implementation of alternative benchmark
interest rates are set out under “interest rate benchmark
reform” in this note.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments, excluding bank deposits and
bank balances, at the end of the reporting period.
For variable-rate bank loan, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis points
(2021: 100 basis points) increase or a 100 basis
points (2021: 100 basis points) decrease is used as it
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2021: 100
basis points) higher or 100 basis points (2021: 100
basis points) lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June
2022 would increase by HK$918,000 (2021: increase
by HK$957,000) or decrease by HK$918,000 (2021:
decrease by HK$957,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s net exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank loan.
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31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 30 June 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

. the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement

of financial position; and

. the amount of financial guarantees issued by the Group
as disclosed in note 25.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amount
due from a non-controlling shareholder, amount due from
a joint venture, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits,
bank balances, loan receivables, trade and other receivables

and financial guarantee contracts.

Trade and other receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. In addition, the
Group performed impairment under ECL model on the trade

balances based on provision matrix.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit impaired, the Group
determines the expected credit losses on these items by using
a provision matrix, grouped by ageing analysis.
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3. &WTH ) 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(Z) 4 BB 45 81 H OB B OSR (48) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
1 L5485 0 o AL VA () Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
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Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is in the PRC. Other than concentration of credit risk
on liquid funds and by geographical location, the Group does
not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spreading across diverse counterparties.

During the year, the Group provided HK$949,000 (2021:
HK$1,896,000) allowance of credit losses on trade
receivables. No allowance of credit losses was provided on
other receivables for both years based on the ECL assessment
as the amount is considered insignificant. Details of the
disclosures are set out below in this note.

Loan receivables

For loan receivables, the Group measures the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. During the year ended 30 June 2022, loan
receivables of HK$1,610,000 have been written off. As at 30
June 2021, the Group provided HK$1,603,000 impairment
allowance for loan receivables. Details of the disclosures are
set out below in this note.

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder/amount due

from a joint venture

For amounts due from a joint venture and a non-controlling
shareholder, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECL. The Group applies internal credit risk
management to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. For amount due from a joint
venture, the management also keeps on working closely
with the liquidation committee of the joint venture and other
relevant parties to monitor the joint venture’s liquidation
process and implementation of the statutory plans upon the
new piece of land.

The credit risk on these balances is limited considering the
credit quality of the counterparties and the loss given default
being minimal due to low loan to value ratio given the fair
value of assets backing repayment of the loan. Therefore, no
allowance of credit losses is made on these balances due to
ECL being immaterial.
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31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Bank deposits/bank balances

The credit risks on Group’s pledged bank deposits, fixed
bank deposits and bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or state-owned banks in
the PRC.

During the year ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, no allowance
of credit losses on fixed bank deposits and bank balances
is provided based on the ECL assessment as the amount is
considered insignificant.

Financial guarantee contracts

For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount
represents the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed

under the respective contracts.

The Group has provided guarantees to banks in connection
with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to finance
their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 70% of
the purchase price of the individual property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage loan during the
period of guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may
demand the Group to repay the outstanding loan and any
interest accrued thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to resell the repossessed properties. Therefore,
management considers it would recover any loss incurred

arising from the guarantee to the customers.

During the year ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, no allowance
of credit losses on financial guarantee contracts is provided
based on the ECL assessment as the amount is considered
insignificant.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

B0 MO

Trade receivables

Jolb et R AH

Other financial assets and other item

A

Low risk

EEAE

Watch st

iz

Doubtful

B

Loss

s

Write-off

ZRHFHRARRE - I EEMEHHR

The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not

have any past-due amounts

EHAERERMA BB
EECn RS e

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually

settle in full

B T N VR de D DL
fFERRT KRN

2YRYEEER-
fE B
Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

EHENGEEER-
KEERE
Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

AMENRERER-
BRERE

There have been significant increases in credit risk since ~ Lifetime ECL -

initial recognition through information developed

internally or external resources

Rl R g EC R EHE

not credit-impaired

EHENERER -
f e

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL -

L3 s LNV ON LD Y G

S S T

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe

credit-impaired

i 508

Amount is written off

financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic

prospect of recovery
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12 AR &EE

12-month ECL

AR &ER

12-month ECL

EMENGERER-
B HERE
Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

EHEEER-
R

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

st 0

Amount is written off
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3. &WTH ) 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(Z) AP B 45 P H B B8O (42) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
15 £ 8 B A1 1 A (4) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
TR A G B R AT T AE RO The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
ﬁﬁ?]ﬁ%ﬁ% 6 [] ¥ PR 32 05 Group’s financial assets and contract assets, which are
FEJa B

subject to ECL assessment:

A i 12 H sk 28500
fRerst RS Rk I 1 48
External Internal Gross
credit credit carrying
rating rating 12-month or Lifetime ECL amount
YT
HKS$’000
TR TR
2022
5B S A -k v WA 5
Financial assets at amortised cost
ARSI 16 AEA EEER 12 H BRI E s
Amount due from a joint 16 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 235,768
venture
o BE SRR 17(3) AEA ARE R ST (G S 1R — A R
Trade receivables 17(i) N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 9,230
EEAE  2UENGESEE - EEEEE
Watch list ~ Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 2,067
75t SIS B 1H — S R
Doubtful Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 1,077
518 SIS R 1 — 5 BEE
Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 2,117
HoAth FE iR K 176) AEA ARER 121 A B (G S H
Other receivables 17(i) N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 3,849
E R T BN 17G)  ANEA RERR 124 71 S5 S 1R
Amount due from anon-  17(ii))  N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 894

controlling shareholder

SRATAF K I BRAT 45 Bk 173iii) ~ Baal £A1 g 121/ H F W Bk E

17(iv)
K28
Bank deposits and bank 17(iii), Baal to A1 N/A 12-month ECL 323,019
balances 17(iv)
& 28
M H
Other item

WMBIERE X () 25 AEH ARER 124/ A TG Sk 1R
Financial guarantee 25 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 5
contracts (Note)
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2021
e B 8 AR il Sk B S Y
Financial assets at amortised cost
BEAIERK 16
Amount due from a joint 16
venture
BRI R AN H
Loan receivables N/A
B 5 e IR 176)
Trade receivables 17(i)
HoAtb B iR K 176)
Other receivables 17(1)
Te HE AR R 3K 17(ii)
Amount due from a non-  17(ii)
controlling shareholder
SRATAF 3K L SRAT 45 B 17(iii)
17(iv)
28
Bank deposits and bank 17(ii1),
balances 17(iv)
& 28
HAb¥H
Other item

WG L) (M2E) 25
Financial guarantee 25
contracts (Note)
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

R T A

SR AR
RETR  FEFHR
External Internal
credit credit
rating rating

124 A 84 1 7 i

B REE

12-month or Lifetime ECL Gross
carrying
amount

T T
HKS$’000

ANEH ARERR 124/ 7 S5 s R
N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 242,129
AN R 2 BT W5 R0 1H — £ Sl
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 1,603
KRR ARERR 2 BTG 0 1 — A5 e
N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 2,957
AR 2T R 1R — IS R
Watch list  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 71
7 5E 2 AT MG B 1 — A5 R
Doubtful Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 37
JEi R ST B R — 5 SR
Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 1,912
AN ARERR 124 7 S5 S 1R
N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 5,280
REm ARERR 12 F (5 s R
N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 919
Baa3 A2 A 1218 A B Sl 1H
Baa3 to A2 N/A 12-month ECL 339,429
ANEA ARERR 124 7 S5 S 1R
N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 71
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31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Note: For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying amount
represents the Group has guaranteed under the respective
contracts.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group provided HK$2,808,000 (2021:
HK$1,942,000) and nil (2021: HK$1,603,000) allowance
of credit losses on trade receivables and loan receivables,
respectively. As at 30 June 2022, trade receivables of
HK$2,117,000 (2021: HK$1,912,000) are considered to
be credit-impaired. As at 30 June 2021, loan receivables of
HK$1,603,000 is considered to be credit-impaired.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for credit-impaired trade receivables
under simplified approach:

2 B8 A £k 1

(45 FE W)

Lifetime ECL

(credit-

impaired)

T T

HK$°000

At 1 July 2020 3,045
Write-off (3,265)
Impairment loss recognised 1,866
Exchange adjustment 266
At 1 July 2021 1,912

Reversal of impairment losses due to financial assets

recognised as at 1 July 2021 (133)
Impairment loss recognised 318
Exchange adjustment 20
At 30 June 2022 2,117
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for the loan receivables:

2 B85 £
(f £ D AE)
Lifetime ECL
(credit-

impaired)
BT T
HK$°000

WoEZEELH—H At 1 July 2020 1,460
[ifE 252 ) B Exchange adjustment 143
W_E_—4FLH—H At 1 July 2021 1,603
T 84 Write-off (1,610)
[iFE %% ) B Exchange adjustment 7
RORTT4AEEH—H At 1 July 2022 _

BB B e T B IR e e
TR W [m] AT RE A R (0 - RS
LR A U AR IR R R AT B
) R S T R R M R
FOE M WAL B (AR R R
Ty e ) o RS S IR B S I R
K B B B R K o

i ) 5 2B

0 PR B e Jm B T > AR SR
WA Bl RBlE S HEZ K
S DA TR R A L DL AT AR
EWIZEF - DB RS 2
BRI R

RS A SR 2 IR AT R A R
% 40 E B DL - ERUAEME
R AR W] R S R BE
il 4 6 2 R Ul B B <6 U R A Y
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The Group writes off trade receivables and loan receivables
when there is information that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivable or loan receivable are over two years past due,
whichever occurs earlier.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank loan
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest period on which the
Group can be required to pay.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the weighted average
interest rate by reference to the HIBOR of the Group’s
variable-rate financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 30 June 2021 and 2022, the Group does not have term
loan with repayment on demand clause. The maturity dates
for bank loan and other non-derivative financial liabilities is
prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

Liquidity risk tables

i IR b ~& ZHA AWBHE  AR=tH
FHNE  SR—MA =R -4 TERE  WEEE  WRE
Weighted  On demand Total  Carrying
average  or less than 1-3 3 months Over5 undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years years years  cashflows 30 June2022
% #WTL BT BWTL BFTL #WTL #iTc #fTo T
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
e .
2022
B9 BRI
Trade and other payables - 14,706 1,197 8,168 - - - 24,01 24,071
BT &I FHA R
Bank loan - variable rate * 3.06 159 1470 93,138 - - - 94,767 91,833
Rl ERS
Long-term rental deposits - - - - 2909 5,343 2,862 11,114 11,114
R
Lease liabilities 390 205 411 1,849 1,146 - - 3,611 3,506
15,070 3,078 103,155 4,055 5343 2,862 133,563 130,524
B IRE A
Financial guarantee contracts 5 - - - - - 5 -
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MRS

Lease liabilities

M ERA%

Financial guarantee contracts

%

191
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RIS
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk tables (Continued)

AMBIH S
ViEAE  (REE
Total Carrying
13 ) 5 ver5  undiscounted amount at

months to 1 year years years ar cash flows 30 June 2021
#HTT  EETT BT BT R #HFT BT
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS$000

13,113 521 6,397 - - - 111 24131
124 1,247 4,088 93,283 - - 98,742 95,607

- - - 9,008 2483 - 11,551 11,551

205 411 1,849 2465 1,146 - 6,076 5,789
13442 6,879 12,334 104,816 3,629 - 141,100 137,738
n - - - - - il _

* AR M ETE SRS o
- 25 R AR T 25 09 ) FE4F
BN F145% (% = —4F : [ %

PrEm £1.45%) -

* For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings, weighted

average interest rate represents the weighted average of
HIBOR plus 1.45% (2021: HIBOR plus 1.45%).
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31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the Group considers that it is more likely than not that no
amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held
by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 20, the Group’s HIBOR bank loan may be
subject to the interest rate benchmark reform.

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average
(“HONIA”) has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR,
there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate
approach has been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR
and HONIA will co-exist. The Group has not yet decided
whether to seek to change the basis of interest in the bank
loan from HIBOR to HONIA.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

(¥
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Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform

The following are the key risks for the Group arising
from the transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to
the relevant alternative benchmark rates and without
detailed fallback clauses, if the bilateral negotiations
with the Group’s counterparties are not successfully
concluded, there are significant uncertainties with
regard to the interest rate that would apply. This
gives rise to additional interest rate risk that was not
anticipated when the contracts were entered into.

Liquidity risk

The additional uncertainty on various alternative rates
which are typically published on overnight basis will

require additional liquidity management.

Litigation risk

If no agreement is reached to implement the interest
rate benchmark reform on contracts which have not
been transitioned to the relevant alternative benchmark
rates (e.g. arising from differing interpretation of
existing fallback terms), there is a risk of prolonged
disputes with counterparties which could give rise to
additional legal and other costs. The Group is working
closely with all counterparties to avoid this from

occurring.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

©

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

(i)

Progress towards implementation of alternative

benchmark interest rates

As part of the Group’s risk management for transition,
new contracts to be entered into by the Group will
link to the relevant alternative benchmark rates or
interest rates which are not subject to reform to the
extent feasible. Otherwise, the Group will ensure the
relevant contracts including detailed fallback clauses
clearly referencing the alternative benchmark rate and
the specific triggering event on which the clause is
activated.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had bank loan of
HK$91,833,000 linked to HIBOR and was negotiating
with the bank to continue HIBOR until maturity.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing

models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial

assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated

financial statements approximate their corresponding fair

values.
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32. AR W R Bk 32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
AN T A R B R R Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the
reporting period:
—®— 4
2022
BT
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
I B & Non-current Assets
1% & It A F Investments in subsidiaries 551,117 566,472
LUEE oV & Property, plant and equipment 8 8
Kt J&g 2\ B K Loans to subsidiaries 719,259 684,824
1,270,384 1,251,304
I B & Current Assets
Al R A T B FELA 3K Other receivables and prepayments 184 188
SRATHS B M Bl Bank balances and cash 1,449 1,068
1,633 1,256
it B B A Current Liability
oAl A R 2K Other payables 4,297 4,131
E B E Net Current Liabilities (2,664) (2,875)
P AR L B A A Total Assets less Current Liability 1,267,720 1,248,429
B A B Capital and Reserves
ik Share capital 237,704 237,704
At (WAt Reserves (Note) 731,738 724,622
A RE 25 Total Equity 969,442 962,326
JE i E) A K Non-current Liability
R M JE s R EKIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 298,278 286,103
1,267,720 1,248,429
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32.

144

A2 il W IR DL )

Wk i

ROF LA

FEER
EREEBAEE

S E T ONGEHE S |
W8 (115
RZFZ—-ERA=1H
R A
BiEE 2 A AR

R GO ) A

B8 (HHEI1E)
BB ENAZHH

At 1 July 2020

Loss for the year
Exchange differences
arising on translation

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year
Dividends (note 11)

At 30 June 2021

Profit for the year
Exchange differences
arising on translation

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year
Dividends (note 11)

At 30 June 2022

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: Reserves

YA VBB
T B 5 fo i W 5% i R A At
Capital Share
Share redemption Translation option Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
#HTT  #FTT #FTT #WFTT #WFTr #FTE
HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
438,475 1,644 85,005 - 125913 651,097
- - - - (10,281) (10,281)
- - 86,183 - - 86,183
- - 86,183 - (10,281) 75,902
- - - - (2,377) (2,377)
438,475 1,644 171,248 - 113,255 724,622
- - - - 36,696 36,696
- - (26,014) - - (26,014)
- - (26,014) - 36,696 10,682
- - - - (3,566) (3,566)
438,475 1,644 145,234 - 146,385 731,738
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33. BEWEA 6N

BEE D TAER R AN =T
Ho EZMEARZFE/WT

33.

45 B R 1E B 5 ()

BE-_T-_—F,A=1HILFE Fortheyear ended 30 June 2022

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2022 and 2021 are
as follows:

: Kl
W/ 3/ / CRITRA /0
WRAT 4 B CHE R /IR Yohiifirifie
Proportion of
nominal value
Place of of issued/
incorporation/ registered
registration/ capital held
Name of subsidiary operation Issued and paid up share capital/registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
WK K
Ordinary Others
i St i S o
022 022 2001
BALEARAD Fik B0 kR0 - - 100%  HEER
Ardent Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HKS$1,200 HK$1,200 - - 100%  Investment holding
AR ERE 8 (Wit~ - - FA000007 K 4300000007 9% WERE
ARAH (Hit-) (it~
Beijing Longfast Property PRC (Note i) - - US$30,000,000  US$30,000,000 95%  Property investment
Development Co., Ltd. (Note) (Note i)
FRBAHMAT i W ko - - 100%  REEERE
Billion Stock Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 100%  Provision of
nominee services
ERELRE EZAV E3 AV - - 00%  BEER
Broad Capital Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Uss1 USs1 - - 100%  Investment holding
TREEERAR &t/ kW o - - 00% i
China Gain Properties Limited ~ Hong Kong/PRC HKS? HKS2 - - 100%  Property investment
ENRRAR ERELRE RAS00E  EE500007C - - 0%  BEER
Dynamic (B.V.L) Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 US850,000 - - 100%  Investment holding
EAMHARAA Fi #0000 ER100007 - - 00% F¥
Dynamic Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS$10,000 HKS10,000 - - 100%  Financing
ENER (L) HRAY  ERREARE #W kb - - 0% FE
Dynamic Management British Virgin Islands HKS? HKS7 - - 100%  Financing
(Beijing) Limited
ENEARKARLR ik #W Bk - - 100%  REERRE
Dynamic Management Services ~ Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 100%  Provision of
Limited management services
Fi #hx o - - 100%  RIEERRE
Dynamic (Nominees) Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 100%  Provision of
management services
R (PR & EREARE FR1% FRIT - - 0% A
ERERAT
Dynamic Real Estate British Virgin Islands USs1 Uss1 - - 100%  Management consultancy
(China) Management
Consultancy Limited
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33. BEEWEA AN )

B

B A AR

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

Name of subsidiary operation

ERELRE
Glory Diamond Inc. British Virgin Islands
B HARA A i
Harvic Investment Limited Hong Kong
RESEARAR ERELRE
High Grand Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands
BHRRARAR FE/ TR
Move On International Limited ~ Hong Kong/PRC

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

146

[

AE HR A ST 2 b R R N B B R A
PR 2 AD (T Jb ¢ AR |) 55 M 25 o A0 & fF
SN A o b R NE 2 G R AR A 26 4
30,000,000 75 o b A 7 A1 4F B 7 B 7% 2
3% 4230,000,000 7T J7 A 4 [ r B2 2 B
AR o SR o AR A [ KK [ B AT A L s A
M 95% | i Je i ¥ 2 -

i

ARHH
CRITRA /0
CHIT R /IR YARTTRE
Proportion of
nominal value
of issued/
registered
capital held
Issued and paid up share capitaliregistered capital by the Company  Principal activities
i1 kb
Ordinary Others
%
“F0C “F0C 3
02 02 2020 2002and 2021
£&10% #4107 - - 100%  BEER
USs10 Uss1o - - 100%  Investment holding
Lo i - - 00%  BEER
HKS2 HKS2 - - 100%  Investment holding
£ AV 217 - - 100%  BEER
Usst Uss1 - - 100%  Tnvestment holding
LA LA - - 0% HERE
HKS1 HKS! - - 100%  Property investment
Notes:

Beijing Longfast Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Longfast”) established in the PRC is registered as sino-foreign co-
operative joint venture. Beijing Longfast had a registered capital
of US$30,000,000. The amount of US$30,000,000 disclosed in
both years above represents capital paid by the Group. However,
the Group’s entitlement to share the profit and net assets in Beijing
Longfast was agreed to be at 95%.

AR Z IR R AR A (32 ) ik The Group’s non-controlling interests and total comprehensive
N B E e I RE 45 o 4 Bl AR R b R (expense) income attributable to non-controlling interests represented
R R L At SR E A B A TR (2 ) ik the equity and total comprehensive (expense) income attributed
Ao RO AR AN A Z A H o bR to the other shareholder of Beijing Longfast, respectively. As
IR R E A v 771,963,000 7C (L at 30 June 2022, Beijing Longfast’s net assets amounting to
X —4E 0 %5794.339,000 96 ) 0 E HK$771,963,000 (2021: HK$794,339,000) were mainly consisted of
(o % % Ep ’%‘766 742,000 7T ( investment properties of HK$766,742,000 (2021: HK$844,271,000),
T AR 844,271,000 06 ) 0 A R amounts due from fellow subsidiaries of HK$87,888,000 (2021:
Fi JB5 /A G 7\ K 87,888,000 UG (& HK $83,042,000), bank balances and cash of HK$147,399,000
T AF i 183,042,000 U6 ) o R AT &Y (2021: HK$196,826,000), other accruals of HK$15,577,000 (2021:
i R IE W 147,399,000 7|: (=%~ HK$12,583,000) and deferred tax liabilities of HK$207,560,000
A i 19196,826,000 7T ) K Al JE St (2021: HK$247,116,000).

s %15,57700075 e g

ey ’%12,583,00075 I AE BIE B

#207,560,000 7C ( = F — — 4 i B

247,116,0007C)

Bk %E J) A MR 22 7] J% Glory Diamond Inc. B
AN FH GRS > BT ME A W)
YRy AN ml A -

RS DL L RR TS W S BR
B S AR B 2 AR E B Jag 2 A > S
%gﬂ P FE At W 2 ) R S R

A U0 T 2 R A A A% AR A B 9 AR AR R i)
O e B AT AT ] i 5 a5 0 -

ii.

iii.

iv.

Other than Dynamic (B.V.1.) Limited and Glory Diamond Inc., which
are wholly-owned directly by the Company, all subsidiaries are held
by the Company indirectly.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year, or at any time during the year.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEWMBRE

HEOES CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
BREAH=Z1HILEE
Year ended 30 June
SR CENE CFORE SRS oF Sg0ok
2018 2019 2021 2022
EWTT  BEFTT EWTT  BWTFL
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
B Revenue 113,030 106,206 92,054 86,719 86,892
AN A NERL  Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
i F (5 19) the owners of the Company 126,125 48,730 (28,413) (14,065) 31,152
BREARF (EH) Basic earnings (loss) per share
GBI M) (Hong Kong cents) 56.0 215 (12.0) (5.9 13.1
I v 2 A Diluted earnings per share
(GBI M) (Hong Kong cents) 53.0 205 N/A N/A N/A

BawE - AN CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND

ERE S S
fo 7 o
BEY

EX-ECES Eo

At

B
Hit & &

B

Ve

LYNSE PN A

T PR IRt 4
AL

RATR -

AR —FREE
IEIERLE A
Bl MHEEL S
ile=yi

Wi E £ 1R

ARAE

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Interest in a joint venture
Amount due from a joint venture
Current assets

Other asset

Total assets

Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Bank loans —
due after one year
Deferred tax liabilities
Long-term rental deposits received
Lease liabilities
Current liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY
RAHZ=Z1H
At 30 June
“E-NE ZE-NE TR RO
2018 2019 2021 2022
BETT BT BETFT ¥
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
1,859 2,431 1,980 2,402 1,818
- - 1,067 5,651 3,317
2,136,283 2,051,020 1,910,689 2,074,921 2,005,063
80,205 93,605 78,918 91,831 91,163
238,283 215,712 220,448 242,129 235,768
343,286 319,915 308,817 352,755 346,925
1,423 1,364 1,313 1,441 1,403
2,801,339 2,684,047 2,523,232 2,771,130 2,685,457
2,148,998 2,095,656 1,988,029 2,166,702 2,134,562
38,186 36,862 37,287 43,265 41,642
2,187,184 2,132,518 2,025,316 2,209,967 2,176,204
127,759 - 95,667 91,833 -
322,594 293,795 253,404 299,809 262,633
14,315 15,175 9,078 11,551 11,114
- - - 3,506 1,134
149,487 242,559 139,767 154,464 234,372
614,155 551,529 497916 561,163 509,253
2,801,339 2,684,047 2,523,232 2,771,130 2,685,457

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

147




| ////////////Jﬂ///m

ANALYSIS OF PROPERTIES HELD
PisAENEDN

A E D FENAZTH AR EY)  Particulars of properties held for investment at 30 June 2022:
E P R

e 3 LT 4R

Location Lease term

N R Vi Gikl|
i

T ST [

L A I

S R IR S S O T O A

LR T O = )

Levels 7 to 22 (without levels 13 and 14) Office Medium
West Tower, Eton Place

No. 69 Dongfang Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai

The People’s Republic of China

SN W FEY fET
Jb

AR I H

BE Y

B B T R S W

ot iHE N

5T R = A

Carpark spaces in Phase I, II, III, Commercial/ Medium
commercial portion of Phase III and Carpark/residential

residential portion of Phase II and IIT

No. 25 Nan Lane

Ganlouyuan

Chaoyang District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China
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